
City of Bethel 
         P.O. Box 1388 

    Bethel, Alaska 99559 

        Phone: 907- 543-2047 

           Fax: 907-543-3781 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

   

  

  

    

  

   

  

 
    Regular City Council Meeting  

Tuesday, October 25, 2016 

                               6:30 P.M. 

    Council Chambers; Bethel, Alaska 



Agenda posted on October 19, 2016, at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office.   

_________________________     
Lori Stickler, City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing November 8, 2016) 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
October 25, 2016 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

Rick Robb 

Mayor 
Term Expires 2017 

543-1879 
rrobb@cityofbethel.net 

Byron Maczynski 

Vice-Mayor 
Term Expires 2016 
545-8010 

bmaczynski@cityofbethel.net 

Leif Albertson 
Council Member 

Term Expires 2017 
543-2819 

lalbertson@cityofbethel.net 

Nikki C. Hoffman 

Council Member  
Term Expires 2017 

543-2608 
nhoffman@cityofbethel.net 

Alisha Welch 
Council Member 

Term Expires 2017 
545-6026 

arwelch@cityofbethel.net 

Fred Watson 

Council Member 
Term Expires 2018 

fwatson@cityofbethel.net 

Pete Williams 

Acting City Manager 
543-2047 

pwilliams@cityofbethel.net 

Lori Strickler 
City Clerk 

543-1384 
lstrickler@cityofbethel.net 

Patty Burley 

City Attorney 

Mary Sattler 

Lobbyist 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD – Five minutes per person

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA AND REGULAR AGENDA

VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

a) *10-11-2016 Regular Meeting Minutes  
b) *10-17-2016 Special Meeting Minutes  

c) *10-18-2016 Special Meeting Minutes  

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE

VIII. SPECIAL ORDERS OF BUSINESS

a) Diabetes Awareness Proclamation (Mayor Robb)

b) Extra Mile Day Proclamation Recognizing The __ City Of Bethel Volunteers (Mayor
Robb)

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 16-31: Amending Title 10, Chapter 3, Of The Bethel
Municipal Code, Related To The Operation Of Snow Machines And ATV’s On Bethel
Roads (Mayor Robb)

b) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 16-32: Acquisition Of Property, Easements For
Institutional Corridor Project – Kipusvic (Acting City Manager Williams)

c) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 16-33: Acquisition Of Property, Easements For
Institutional Corridor Project – BNC(Acting City Manager Williams)

d) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 16-34: Acquisition Of Property, Easements For
Institutional Corridor Project – YKHC (Acting City Manager Williams)

e) Resolution 16-27: Council In Support Of Alaska Department Of Transportation For
Bethel Airport Improvements (Vice Mayor Maczynski).

f) AM 16-66: Authorizing Administration To Sign The Statewide Transportation Alternatives
Program FY 2013-2016 Grant Agreement To Accept Grant Funds To Construct A Gravel
Trail (City Manager Capela)

i. IM 16-07: Alaska Transportation Alternatives Program Trail Grant (Acting City Manager
Williams)

g) AM 16-70: Direct City Administration To Prepare And Submit An FY 2018 Alaska
Community Transit Grant Application With $80,580 Included From The City’s Fiscal
Year 2018 Budget As A Local Match (Acting City Manager Williams)

X. NEW BUSINESS 

a) *Introduction Of Budget Ordinance 16-17 (b): Amending The FY 2017 Budget For 
E 911 Service (Acting City Manager Williams) 

b) *Introduction Of Budget Ordinance 16-17 (c): Amending The FY 2017 Budget For 
Janitorial Services At The Courthouse (Acting City Manager Williams) 

P2
P15
P19

P3
1

P32

P34

P39

P46

P53

P84

P85

P90

P96

P98

mailto:rrobb@cityofbethel.net
mailto:bmaczynski@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lalbertson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:nhoffman@cityofbethel.net
mailto:arwelch@cityofbethel.net
mailto:fwatson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:pwilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lstrickler@cityofbethel.net


Agenda posted on October 19, 2016, at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office.  

_________________________     
Lori Stickler, City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing November 8, 2016) 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
October 25, 2016 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

c) AM 16-71: Take Home Vehicle Policy (Acting City Manager Williams)

d) *AM 16-72: Approving The Appointment Of Juan Delgado To The Energy 
Committee For A Term Of Three Years (Mayor Robb) 

e) AM 16-73: Janitorial Cleaning Contract For Court House (Acting City Manager
Williams)

f) AM 16-74: Directing Administration To Sign The Managed Services Agreement
Between The City Of Bethel And ProComm Alaska For The Ongoing Maintenance of
the Enhanced 911 System (Acting City Manager Williams)

g) Establishing The City Of Bethel, State Capital Priority Request (Mayor Robb)

h) *Administrative Leave Request For City Clerk November 1-3, 2016 Personal Leave 
Request October 28 (Mayor Robb) 

i) Direct Administration To Look For Grant Funding And To Work With Federal And
State Representatives And Tribal Entities To Help Obtain Grant Funding For Opiate
Treatment In The Region (Council Member Maczynski)

XI. MAYOR’S REPORT

XII. MANAGER’S REPORTS

XIII. CLERK’S REPORT

XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION

a) AS 44.62.310 (C) 1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which Would Clearly
Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity: Legal Liability For
The Transit System (Mayor Robb)

XVI. ADJOURNMENT

P100

P104

P105

P118
P135A



 

Approval of the Meeting Minutes 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

1



1 
City Council Meeting Minutes City of Bethel, Alaska 

October 11, 2016 

Regular Meeting 
October 11, 2016 

I. CALL TO ORDER   

A Regular Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on October 11, 2016 at 6:30 p.m., in 
the council chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 

Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

Main Motion: 
Suspend the rules to move Special Order of Business Items ABC 
to the next item of business.  

Moved by: Fansler 
Seconded by: Maczynksi 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch  

Opposed:  0 

IV. SPECIAL ORDERS OF BUSINESS

Item A – Review Canvass Board Certificate Of Election, October 6, 2015. 

Item B- Resolution16-31: Certifying The Results Of The City Of Bethel, Regular 
Municipal Election Held October 4, 2016.  

  City Council Meeting 
 City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

     Mayor Rick Robb      Council Member  Nikki Hoffman 

     Vice-Mayor Byron Maczynski      Council Member  Alisha Welch 

     Council Member Leif Albertson      Council Member Mary Weiss 

     Council Member Zach Fansler 

Members Absent: 

 Council Member Mary Weiss 

 Also in attendance were the following: 

     Acting City Manager Pete Williams      City Clerk Lori Strickler 

2



2 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 11, 2016 

Main Motion: Adopt Resolution 16-31.  

Moved by: Fansler 
Seconded by: Maczynksi 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch   

Opposed:  0 

Item C- Oath Administered To Newly Elected Council Members.  

Byron Maczynski, Fred Watson and Norman Ayagalria were administered their 
oath of office and took their place on the council bench.  

Standing Council Members are:  

Richard Robb 
Leif Albertson 
Byron Maczynksi 
Nikki Hoffman 
Alisha Welch 
Fred Watson 
Norman Ayagalria 

 
V. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD  

 
Eileen Hendrickson, although a member of the Public Safety and Transportation 

Commission, stated her personal opposition to Action Memorandum 16-71; 
stated it appears there is a misunderstanding.   

 
Larry Howard – There appears to be a lot of confusion between the directives 

from the City Council and the actions of the Police Department.  
 
Gary Hansen – Thanked the Council for their hard work. The Council needs to 

consider how decisions are going to affect everyone before they make 
decisions.  

 
Dave Trantham- Thanked the outgoing council members for serving their 

community. Title 29 governs a second class city; the people of Bethel 
cannot elect a mayor in this community. Suggested the Council Elect 
Council Member Alisha Welch as the mayor. Stated he believes the Council 
had been micromanaging the City Council.  

 
Fritz Charles- Stated his opposition to some of the items outlined in Ordinance 

16-31 such as the maximum speed of 25 miles per hour. Suggested 
banning four wheelers during certain times of the day.  

 

3



3 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 11, 2016 

Ira Flowers – Spoke in opposition to the active enforcement of the ATV and 
four-wheeler laws.  

 
Mary Nanuwak Thanked the Council for their hard work and stated while she 

would have liked to win the election for Council, she is happy with the 
results. Additionally stated there should be someone to check the 
microphones and  

 
Jennifer Fiess – Asked the Council to provide a provision clarification on the 

ATV and four-wheeler laws tonight to allow people to use their ATVs 
tomorrow.  

 
Myron Nanning – ATVs are not just a city of Bethel issue, they are least 

expensive way of transportation. This is an issue for many communities in 
the Region.  

 
Item B – Public Hearing Of Ordinance 16-28: Authorizing A Lease Revenue Refund Bond.  

 
[Time certain 7:30p] 

Mayor Robb Opened the Public Hearing. 
Mayor Robb Closed the Public Hearing.  

PEOPLE TO BE HEARD returned  

Vernon Blevins – Spoke in opposition to the active enforcement of ATV and four-
wheeler laws.  

VI. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA 

Main Motion: Approve the Consent and Regular Agenda. 

Moved by: Welch 
Seconded by: Hoffman  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed:  0 

 
Removal from 

the Consent 

Agenda: Remove Introduction of Ordinance 16-31 from consent agenda. 

Moved by:  Hoffman  

 
Removal from 

the Consent 
Agenda: 

Remove New Business Items B, C, D, and I from the consent 
agenda.  

Moved by:  Albertson   

4



4 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 11, 2016 

 
VII. APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES 

 
Item A – Special City Council Meeting September 26, 2016 
Passed on the consent agenda. 
 
Item B – Regular City Council Meeting September 27, 2016 
Passed on the consent agenda. 
 
Item C – Special City Council Meeting September 30, 2016 
Passed on the consent agenda. 
 
Item D – Special City Council Meeting October 3, 2016 
Passed on the consent agenda. 
 

VIII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
 
Public Safety and Transportation Commission –  
No one present to provide a report.  
 
Port Commission –  
Commission Representative Alisha Welch – 
The floats are going to be pulled.  
 
Planning Commission –  
Council Representative, Nikki Hoffman – 
Noting to report.  
 
Parks and Recreation Committee –  
Committee Representative Brian Lefferts – 
The website for the pool is up and running; Discussed the repairs needed at Owl Park; 
questioned the status of the recommended dog park; continue to review the wellness 
program options; received an update of the Pinky’s Park grant, the committee is 
considering requesting larger square footage for the multi-purpose field; discussed the 
trail from the hospital and the college.    
 
Finance Committee –  
Council Representative, Leif Albertson – 
Looking over the suggested amendments to the sales tax code.   
 
Energy Committee –  
Committee Recorder, John Sargent –  
Discussed the Energy Workshop that was held at the Cultural Center.  
Review and reworking the composting toilet ordinance.  

5



5 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 11, 2016 

Energy Grant opportunities.  
 
Public Works Committee –  
Council Representative, Byron Maczynski – 
A meeting has not been held since the last City Council meeting.  
 
Marijuana Advisory Committee –  
No report.  
 

IX. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS 
Items A, B and C were moved ahead on the agenda.  

Item D - Health Fitness Update On YK Fitness Center Operation.  

X. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Item A – Public Hearing Of Ordinance 16-27: Amending Bethel Municipal Code 
18.60.010, Conditional Use Permit Authorization. 

Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 16-27. 

Moved by: Hoffman  

Seconded by: Welch 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
Item B – Public Hearing Of Ordinance 16-28: Authorizing A Lease Revenue Refund Bond.  

 

Mayor Robb Opened the Public Hearing. 
No one present to be heard.  
Mayor Robb Closed the Public Hearing.   
 

Main Motion: Motion to adopt was made on September 27. 

Moved by: Hoffman  

Seconded by: Welch 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria  

Item C – Public Hearing Of Ordinance 16-29: Acquisition Of Property, Easements For 
Institutional Corridor Project – AVEC.  

Mayor Robb Opened the Public Hearing. 
No one present to be heard.  
Mayor Robb Closed the Public Hearing.   

6



6 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 11, 2016 

 
Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 16-29. 

Moved by: Hoffman  

Seconded by: Welch 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria  

Opposed: 0 

Item D – Public Hearing Of Ordinance 16-30: Acquisition Of Property, Easements For 
Institutional Corridor Project- Walsh & Co. 

Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 16-30. 

Moved by: Maczynski 

Seconded by: Welch 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-1 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed:  Hoffman   

Item E – Resolution 16-27: Council In Support Of Alaska DOT For Bethel Airport 
Improvements. 

Main Motion: 

A motion to approve Resolution 16-27 was made at the 

September 13, 2016 Regular Meeting.  

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Weiss 

Action: Postponed 

 

Subsidiary 

Motion: Postpone  

Moved by: Maczynski 

Seconded by: Hoffman  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria  

Opposed: 0 

Item F – AM 16-66: Authorizing Administration To Sign The Statewide Transportation 
Alternatives Program FY 2013-2016 Grant Agreement To Accept Grant Funds To 
Construct A Gravel Trail. 

Main Motion: 

Motion to approve was made at the September 27, Regular 

Meeting.  

Moved by: Hoffman 

Seconded by: Welch 

7



7 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 11, 2016 

Action: Postponed 

 
Main Motion: Suspend the rules to hear from John Sargent, Grant Manager.  

Moved by: Welch 

Seconded by: Hoffman 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
Main Motion: Postpone.  

Moved by: Albertson  

Seconded by: Hoffman  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-3 

In favor:  Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   

Opposed:  Robb   Maczynski   Ayagalria 

 
XI. NEW BUSINESS 

 
Item A – Introduction Of Ordinance 16-31: Amending Title 10, Chapter 3, Of The 
Bethel Municipal Code, Related To The Operation Of Snow Machines And ATV’s On 
Bethel Roads.  
 

Main Motion: Introduce Ordinance 16-31.  

Moved by: Hoffman  

Seconded by: Maczynski 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 

Primary 

Amendment: 

Amend to strike under 10.03.030, Operations of Snow Machines 

Subsection 4., “side of the lane of traffic” and insert “shoulder of 

the road in the direction of traffic.” 

Moved by:  Welch 

Seconded by: Hoffman  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-3 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Welch   Ayagalria  

Opposed:  Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   

 
Secondary 

Amendment: 

Amend to strike “ correct shoulder of the road” and insert “as far 

right as feasible.” 

Moved by: Maczynski 

Seconded by: Welch 

8



8 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 11, 2016 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-2 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed:  Watson    Hoffman   

 
Primary 

Amendment: 

Amend 10.03.050 Snow Machine and ATV Drive Qualifications, A. 

to strike “18” and insert “16.” 

Moved by: Welch  

Seconded by: Maczynski 

Action: Motion does not carry by a vote of 0-7  

In favor: 0 

Opposed:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

 
Secondary 

Amendment: 

Amend to strike “16,” and insert “14.” 

Amend Subsection 1. to insert “or permit.”  

Moved by: Welch 

Seconded by: Maczynski 

Action: Motion does not carry by a vote of 1-6 

In favor:  Watson    

Opposed:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

 
Primary 

Amendment: 

Amend 10.030.040 to inert A. “7. Passengers and drivers must 

use a helmet while operating on City roads.” 

Moved by: Hoffman  

Seconded by: Albertson  

Action: Motion does not carry by a vote of 1-6 

In favor:  Albertson   

Opposed:  Robb   Maczynski   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

 
Secondary 

Amendment: Amend to strike “drivers” and insert “minors.” 

Moved by: Hoffman  

Seconded by: Maczynski 

Action: Motion does not carry by a vote of 0-7 

In favor: 0 

Opposed:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

 
Primary 

Amendment: 

10.030.0050, A. 4. To insert “and passengers” and strike 

“operators.” 

Moved by: Hoffman  

Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: Does not carry by a vote of 2-5 

In favor:   Albertson     Hoffman   

9



9 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 11, 2016 

Opposed:  Robb   Maczynski  Watson  Welch   Ayagalria 

 
Primary 

Amendment: Amend to strike Operators under subsection 10.03.050 4. 

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Welch 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-1 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria  

Opposed:  Watson    

 
Item B – Introduction Of Ordinance 16-32: Acquisition Of Property, Easements For 
Institutional Corridor Project – Kipusvic. 
 

Main Motion: Introduction of Ordinance 16-32.  

Moved by: Welch 

Seconded by: Maczynski 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
Item C – Introduction Of Ordinance 16-33: Acquisition Of Property, Easements For 
Institutional Corridor Project – BNC. 
 

Main Motion: Introduction of Ordinance 16-33.  

Moved by: Hoffman  

Seconded by: Welch 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
Item D – Introduction Of Ordinance 16-34: Acquisition Of Property, Easements For 
Institutional Corridor Project – YKHC.. 
 

Main Motion: Introduction of Ordinance 16-34.  

Moved by: Hoffman  

Seconded by: Maczynski 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

10



10 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 11, 2016 

Item E – AM 16-70: Direct City Administration To Prepare And Submit An FY 2018 
Alaska Community Transit Grant Application With $80,580 Included From The City’s 
Fiscal Year 2018 Budget As A Local Match. 

 
Main Motion: Approve AM 16-70. 

Moved by: Maczynski 

Seconded by: Welch 

Action: Postponed 

 
Main Motion: Postpone.  

Moved by: Welch 

Seconded by: Maczynski 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
Main Motion: Extend the meeting passed 11:00p.  

Moved by: Maczynski 

Seconded by: Welch 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

Item F- Update/Explanation On Section 106 Review Process – Donlin Gold.  

Item G- Administrative Leave Request For The City Clerk November 14, 15, 16. 
Passed on the consent agenda.  
 

Main Motion: Extend the meeting passed 11:00p.  

Moved by: Maczynski 

Seconded by: Welch 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

Item H- IM 16-04: Modification To The Transit System Personnel Recruitment 
And Hiring Structure. 

Item I- IM 16-05: City Of Bethel Monthly Financial Statements. 

11



11 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 11, 2016 

Item J- AM 16-71: Direct Administration To Suspend Action Memorandum 16-67 
Thereby Suspending The Increase Of Active Enforcement of state laws (including 
ticketing) related to the use of snowmobiles and ATVs on City and State roads in 
Bethel pending the outcome of a proposed ordinance regarding snowmobile and 
ATV use on city streets. 

Main Motion: 

Motion to suspend the rules to hear from Amy Davis, Acting Chief 

of Police.  

Moved by: Maczynski 

Seconded by: Watson 

Action: Motion does not carry by a vote of 3-4 

In favor:  Maczynski   Watson    Ayagalria  

Opposed:  Robb  Welch   Hoffman   Albertson   

 
XII. MAYOR’S REPORT 

XIII. MANAGER’S REPORT 

XIV. CLERK’S REPORT 

XV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

Mayor Richard Robb – 
Welcomed the new council members.  
 
Vice-Mayor Byron Maczynski – 
No comment.  
 
Council Member Albertson – 
No comment.  
 
Council Member Fred Watson – 
Thanked the citizens of bethel for their vote.  
 
Council Member Norman Ayagalria – 
Thanked the members of the community for their vote, looking forward to working for 
the community.  
 
Council Member Nikki Hoffman –  
Clarified that the ATV laws are not new laws, the Council simply directed 
administration to enforce the laws. Provided condolences to the family in Akiachak for 
the loss of life cause by an ATV accident.  
 
Council Member Alisha Welch – 

12



12 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 11, 2016 

Welcomed the new City Council Members, and thanked the outgoing members.  
 

XVI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Item A – Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which Would Clearly Have An 

Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity – Employment 
Contract Review, City Manager. 

 
Item B- AS 44.62.310 (C) 1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which 

Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public 
Entity –Potential Litigation United Pools. 

 

Main Motion: 

Move into Executive Session To Discuss Alaska Statutes 

44.62.310: Personnel Matters (Unless The Person Has 

Requested To Have The Subjects Discussed In Public) Or 

Subjects That Tend To Prejudice The Reputation And Character 

Of A Person. 

AS 44.62.310 (C) 1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of 
Which Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The 
Finances Of The Public Entity –Potential Litigation United 
Pools. 
Those participating in the Executive Session will be the Council 

Members, City Attorney Burley, and City Manager Capela. 

Moved by: Hoffman  

Seconded by: Welch 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed:   0 

XVII. ADJOURNMENT 

Main Motion: Adjourn 

Moved by: Welch 

Seconded by: Maczynski 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

Council adjourned at 12:34 p.m. 
 

 
 

13



13 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 11, 2016 

_________________________ 
 Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
 Lori Strickler, City Clerk  

14



City Council Meeting 
Minutes City of Bethel, Alaska 

October 17, 2016 

1

Special Meeting 
October 17, 2016 

I. CALL TO ORDER   
A Special Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on October 17, 2016 at 
6:30pm in the Council Chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 

Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30p. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
III. ROLL CALL

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD

Adriane Wagner, KYUK Reporter- Stated concerns related to the continued 
communication issued with the Bethel Police Department. This lack of 
communication is a transparency issue for the Municipality of Bethel.  

V. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Main Motion: Approval of the Agenda. 
Motion: Maczynski 

Seconded by: Hoffman  

Action: 
In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 
 Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

Primary 
Amendment: Postpone Item D under New Business.  

City Council Meeting 
City of Bethel, Alaska

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

     Mayor Rick Robb      Council Member  Nikki Hoffman 

     Vice-Mayor Byron Maczynski      Council Member  Fred Watson 

     Council Member Leif Albertson      Council Member Norman Ayagalria 

     Council Member  Alisha Welch 

 Also in attendance were the following: 

     Acting City Manager Pete Williams      City Clerk Lori Strickler 

15



City Council Meeting 
Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 17, 2016 

2

Motion: Maczynski 

Seconded by: Welch 

Action: 
In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 
 Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

Item A- Election of Mayor 
 

Nomination:  Richard Robb 
Motion: Maczynski 

 
Round One Voting 
 
6 Votes for Richard Robb 
1 Vote for Alisha Welch 
 
Richard Robb was elected Mayor by the Council.  
 
Item B- Election of Vice-Mayor 
 

Nomination: Welch 
Motion: Hoffman 

 
Nomination: Maczynski 

Motion: Ayagalria 

 
Nomination: Albertson 

Motion: Albertson 

 
Round One Voting  
 
4 Votes for Byron Maczynski 
2 Votes for Alisha Welch 
1 Votes for Leif Albertson 
 
was elected Vice-Mayor by the Council.  
 
Item C - Appointment Of Committee/Commission Council Representatives 
and Appointments To Non Standing Committees. 
 
1. Parks, Recreation, Health, Aquatic and Safety Center Committee. 

16



City Council Meeting 
Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 17, 2016 

3

Council Member Watson is appointed to the Committee.  
 
2. Planning Commission 

Council Member Hoffman is appointed to the Commission.  
 
3. Finance Committee 

Council Member Albertson is appointed to the Committee.  
 
4. Public Safety And Transportation Commission 

Council Member Ayagalria is appointed to the Commission.  
 
5. Energy Committee 

Council Member Robb is appointed to the Committee.  
 
6. Port Commission 
Council Member Welch is appointed to the Commission.  
 
7. Public Works Committee 

Council Member Maczynski is appointed to the Committee.  
 
8. Marijuana Advisory Committee 

Council Member Maczynski is appointed to the Advisory Committee.  
 
Council concurred to the appointments.  
 
1. Senior Center Advisory Committee 
Council Member Maczynski is appointed. 

 
2. Yuut Elitnaurviat 
Council Member Albertson is appointed.  
 
3. Transit Committee 
No one is appointed to the Transit Committee.  
 
4. Delta Tobacco Control Alliance Member And Alternate 

Council Member Albertson is appointed and Council Member Welch is the 
Alternate.  
 
5. Kuimavik Board Representative  
Council Member Robb is appointed.  
 

Council concurred to the appointments.  
 
Item D- Discussion With City Manager Candidate Bob Sivick.  

17



City Council Meeting 
Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 17, 2016 

4

 
Council Member Albertson departed the meeting at 7:48p 
 

VII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Item A- Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which Would Clearly Have An Adverse 
Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity – Employment Contract Review, City 
Manager. Those participating will be City Clerk, Lori Strickler, Acting City Manager Pete 
Williams.  

 

Main Motion: 

Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which Would Clearly Have An Adv
Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity – Employment Contract Rev
City Manager. Those participating will be City Clerk, Lori Strickler, Acting C
Manager Pete Williams.  
 

Motion: Welch  

Seconded by: Hoffman  

Action: 
In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 
 Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
     

Main Motion: Adjourn.  
Motion: Welch 

Seconded by: Hoffman 

Action: 
In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 
 Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
    
 
      ______________________________ 
     Richard Robb, Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST:  
 
_______________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk  

18



City Council Meeting 

Minutes City of Bethel, Alaska 
October 18, 2016 

1 

Special Meeting 
October 18, 2016 

I. CALL TO ORDER   
A Special Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on October 18, 2016 at 
6:00pm in the Council Chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 

Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:00p. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD

V. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Main Motion: Approval of the Agenda. 

Motion: Hoffman 

Seconded by: Welch 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

 Robb   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Item A- Discussion With City Manager Candidate Bob Sivick. 

City Council Meeting 
City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

     Mayor Rick Robb      Council Member  Nikki Hoffman 

     Council Member  Fred Watson 

     Council Member Norman Ayagalria 

     Council Member  Alisha Welch 

Those Absente are: 

     Council Member Leif Albertson      Vice-Mayor Byron Maczynski 

 Also in attendance were the following: 

     Acting City Manager Pete Williams      City Clerk Lori Strickler 

19



City Council Meeting 

Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  October 18, 2016 

2 

 
 

VII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Item A- Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which Would Clearly Have An Adverse 

Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity – Employment Contract Review, City 
Manager. Those participating will be City Clerk, Lori Strickler, Acting City Manager Pete 
Williams.  

 

Main Motion: 

Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which Would Clearly Have An  
Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity – Employment Contract 
Review, City Manager. Those participating will be City Clerk, Lori  
Strickler, Acting City Manager Pete Williams.  

 

Motion: Hoffman   

Seconded by: Welch  

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

 Robb    Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
     

Main Motion: Adjourn.  

Motion: Welch 

Seconded by: Hoffman 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

 Robb   Watson    Hoffman   Welch   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
    
Council Adjourned the meeting at 6:57p. 
 
      ______________________________ 
     Richard Robb, Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST:  
 
_______________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk  

20



 

Reports of Standing Committees  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



22



23



24



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 1 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  October 4th, 2016 

City of Bethel, Alaska  

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 

October 4, 2016 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

A regular meeting of the Public Safety and Transportation Commission was held on October 4th, 

2016 in the Bethel City Hall Council Chambers. 

  

This meeting was called to order at 7:01 pm. 

 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

Present:  Joan Dewey Chair 

Mary Weiss Council Representative 

Eileen Henrikson Vice Chair 

   Daniel Maczynski  

    

 

Absent: 

Bill Howell Fire Chief 

Naim Shabani 

Julene Webber 

 

Ex-Officio Present:  

Andre Achee Chief of Police (telephonically) 

Daron Solesbee Fire Captain 

Amy Davis Investigations Sergeant 

Christina Him Recorder and Transportation Inspector Designee 

 

Ex-Officio Absent:  Bill Howell Fire Chief 

 

III.  PEOPLE TO BE HEARD 

 

Ray Watson – Stated opposition to the active enforcement of ATV and four-wheeler 

laws, would like a recommendation that advocates for citizens who use ATV’s and 

who are obeying the laws. 

 

Loni Upshaw -  Stated opposition to the active enforcement of ATV and four-wheeler 

laws. 

 

Leif Albertson – Clarifying City Council’s objectives with the active enforcement of 

ATV and four-wheeler laws. 

 

25



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 2 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  October 4th, 2016 

Rick Robb – Stated opposition to the active enforcement of ATV and four-wheeler 

laws, however would like to work towards a solution, favors a shared-road system 

and is proposing an ordinance that will allow ATVs and four-wheelers on the road. 

 

Samuel Hare - Stated opposition to the active enforcement of ATV and four-wheeler 

laws. 

 

Gary Hanson - Stated opposition to the active enforcement of ATV and four-wheeler 

laws. 

 

Ira S. Flowers III – Stated opposition to the active enforcement of ATV and four-

wheeler laws. 

 

Brian Hughes - Stated opposition to the active enforcement of ATV and four-wheeler 

laws, would like a compromise for those who are responsible and obeying the laws on 

ATVs and four-wheelers. 

 

Fedosia Hughes – Stated opposition to the active enforcement of ATV and four-

wheeler laws. 

 

Vernon Blevins – Stated opposition to the active enforcement of ATV and four-

wheeler laws. 

 

Bridget Hughes Stated opposition to the active enforcement of ATV and four-wheeler 

laws, would like a compromise for those who are responsible and obeying the laws on 

ATVs and four-wheelers. 

 

Jennifer Fiess – Stated opposition to the active enforcement of ATV and four-wheeler 

laws. 

 

Scott Greydanus – Stated opposition to the active enforcement of ATV and four-

wheeler laws. 

 

Chief Achee – Clarified the stance of the BPD’s active enforcement of the ATV and 

four wheeler laws per the Action Memorandum from City Council. The action 

memorandum asked BPD to strictly enforce ATV/off-road laws and removes all 

discretion from police officers. 

 

 

 

IV.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOVED: Henrikson Motion to approve the agenda. 

SECONDED: Maczynksi 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

 

 

 

26



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 3 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  October 4th, 2016 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

MOVED: Maczynski Motion to approve the minutes from the regular 

meeting of September 6th, 2016. SECONDED: Henrikson 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

 

 

VI. CHIEFS’ COMMENTS 

 

Captain Daron Solesbee - See report in commission packet. 

Chief Andre Achee – No comments, see report in commission packet. 

 

 

VII.   TRANSPORTATION INSPECTOR REPORT 

 

See Report in Commission Packet. 

 

 

VIII. COUNCIL MEMBER’S COMMENTS 

 

Council Member Weiss – As we are very much aware, the City Council did task a resolution 

that the ATV rule should be enforced and encouraged the Alaska State Troopers to enforce it 

and then it all turned into the Bethel Police Department as well. There was a pretty active 

discussion, a lot of it was generated because there are people that are on ATV’s and they are 

reckless and dangerous. There was a lot of back and forth. There was obviously a whole 

bunch of discussion on basically discretion and what exactly does enforcement mean since it 

was maintained and they were already enforcing it. We have another City Council meeting 

coming up. We will be speaking about it a little more down on the agenda.  

 

  

MOVED: Weiss  Motion to relax the formality of the meeting and allow 

Gary Hanson to ask a question.  SECONDED: Maczynski 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

 

Gary Hanson – Inquired on statistical report provided by BPD on how many citations were 

issued to ATV drivers that were actually driving recklessly or whether they were just driving on 

the streets.  

 

Investigations Sergeant Amy Davis – Citations in our system is tracked by the Statute, so it 

doesn’t actually break down what each person was doing, but on each citation there is a 

probable cause segment and the officer writes down on the citation usually what the reason for 

their stop is. It is written on the citation, as far as tracking goes, it is really difficult to track, 

because it’s tracked by statute number.  

 

 

 

27



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 4 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  October 4th, 2016 

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 

None.  

 

X. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Statewide Task Force Update on Heroin (Byron Maczynski, Council Member) 

 

Not Discussed, Byron Maczynski was unable to attend.  

 

B. Clarification of Roadway Use for ATVs (Mary Weiss, Council Member)  

 

See Report in Commission Packet 

 

i. Proposition of Ordinance: Operation of Snow Machines and 

ATV’s on Bethel Roads (Rick Robb, Mayor)  

MOVED: Maczynski Motion to relax the formality of meeting to 

allow Mayor Rick Robb to speak about 

proposed ordinance: “Operation of Snow 

Machines and ATV’s on Bethel Roads.” 

SECONDED: Henrikson 

 

MOVED: Henrikson Motion to recommend suspending Action 

Memorandum 16-30, pending the outcome 

of proposed ordinance of “Operation of 

Snow Machines and ATV’s on Bethel 

Roads.” 

SECONDED: Maczynski 

VOTE ON MOTION All in favor. 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

 

MOVED: Henrikson Motion to recommend proposed ordinance: 

“Operation of Snow Machines and ATV’s on 

Bethel Roads.” SECONDED: Maczynski 
 

MOVED: Henrikson Motion to amend the proposed ordinance 

to include that all passengers or operators 

under the age of 18 be required to wear 

helmets   

SECONDED: Maczynski 

VOTE ON 

AMENDMENT 

All in favor. 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

See Report in Commission Packet 

28



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 5 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  October 4th, 2016 

 

XI. COMMISSION MEMBER COMMENTS 

 

 

Eileen Henrikson – If you guys know anyone that needs a job, there’s a recruitment event 

next week at the Job Center for Westward Seafood on Wednesday morning at 9am.  

 

Daniel Maczynski – I would like to put the “Neighborhood Watch” back on the Agenda for 

the next meeting. That’s been getting a lot of attention.  

 

Mary Weiss – I think this was really an excellent meeting, I think it really served the idea of 

good governance, I think we got a lot of public input which was what was needed. And I think 

it was wonderful that Robb was here because we were able to really sit down and talk about 

what needed to happen. I just want to congratulate everyone; it was nice to see a lot of 

people come out.  

 

Joan Dewey - Chief, this is the second time you’re on your vacation and thank you so much 

for all that you’re doing for the community, but also helping us with giving us input to help 

with how we go about considering these issues, appreciate that.  

 

Chief Achee – No comment. 

 

Chief Howell – Not present to be heard. 

 

Captain Daron Solesbee – No comment. 

 

Sgt. Amy Davis – No Comment. 

 

Julene Webber – Not present to be heard. 

 

Naim Shabani – Not present to be heard.  

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

MOVED: Henrikson Motion to adjourn. 

SECONDED: Maczynski 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 9:43 pm. 

 

APPROVED THIS _______  DAY OF_______________________, 2016.    

   

     

 

    

_________________________    ________________________ 

Christina Him, Recorder     Joan Dewey, Chair 

29



 

Special Order of Business 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

30



City of Bethel Proclamation 
Proclaiming the Month of November 2016 as “National Diabetes Month” 

WHEREAS,  nearly 30 million adults in the United States and over 7.6% of adult Alaskans have 

a diagnosis of diabetes; and 

WHEREAS,  in the last 5 years, there has been a 79% increase in high risk factors for the 
development of diabetes or pre-diabetes in the YK Delta Region; and 

WHEREAS,  currently, 6.4% of adults within the Bethel population have diabetes or pre-

diabetes; and 

WHEREAS,  one out of three U.S. adults has prediabetes, with 90% of these adults being 
unaware of their disease, and without lifestyle changes, 15-30% of those with 
prediabetes will develop type 2 diabetes within five years; and  

WHEREAS,  during National Diabetes Month, we recognize the impact diabetes has on people’s 

lives; and 

WHEREAS,  according to National data, individuals who are in a high risk category for 
developing type 2 diabetes are people who do not participate in regular physical 
activities, are overweight, are 45 years or older and who are of Alaskan Native 

descent; and  

WHEREAS,  during National Diabetes Month, the American Diabetes Association, the Alaska 
Department of Health and Social Services and healthcare providers such as YKHC 
encourage Bethel residents to eat healthier and engage in more physical activity 

throughout this month;   

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Richard Robb, Mayor of the City of Bethel, do hereby proclaim the month of 
November 2016 as “National Diabetes Month” and November 14th as “World Diabetes Day” in 
Bethel and encourage all Bethel residents to make healthy life choices and make a personal 

commitment to eat healthy and exercise. 

IN OFFICIAL RECOGNITION WHEREOF, I hereby affix my signature on this 18th day of October 
2016. 

_____________________________ 
 Richard Robb, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
 Attest:  Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

31



       
City of Bethel Proclamation 

 
A PROCLAMATION BY THE BETHEL CITY COUNCIL,  

PROCLAIMING NOVEMBER 1, 2016 EXTRA MILE DAY 
 
 

WHEREAS, Bethel, Alaska, is a community which acknowledges that a special vibrancy 
exists within the entire community when its individual citizens collectively “go 
the extra mile” in personal effort, volunteerism, and service; and 

 
WHEREAS, Bethel, Alaska, is a community which encourages its citizens to maximize their 

personal contribution to the community by giving of themselves wholeheartedly 
and with total effort, commitment, and conviction to their individual ambitions, 
family, friends, and community; and 

 
WHEREAS, Bethel, Alaska, is a community which chooses to shine a light on and celebrate 

individuals and organizations within its community who “go the extra mile” in 
order to make a difference and lift up fellow members of their community; and 

 
WHEREAS, Bethel, Alaska, acknowledges the mission of Extra Mile America to create 550+ 

Extra Mile cities in America and is proud to support “Extra Mile Day” 
on November 1, 2016. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Mayor Robb of Bethel, Alaska, do hereby proclaim November 1, 
2016, to be Extra Mile Day. I urge each individual in the community to take time on this day 
to not only “go the extra mile” in his or her own life, but to also acknowledge all those who 
are inspirational in their efforts and commitment to make their organizations, families, 
community, country, or world a better place. 
 
  
 
 _____________________________ 
                                                                       Richard Robb, Mayor 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
 Attest:  Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

32



 

Unfinished Business  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

33



Introduced by: Mayor Richard Robb 
 Introduction Date October 11,2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action: 

Vote: 

City of Bethel, Alaska Ordinance 16-31 
Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 

Ordinance #16-31

An Operation of Snow Machines and ATV's on Bethel Roads 

WHEREAS, snow machines are used by many people of Bethel for winter transportation, 
subsistence hunting and gathering, trapping; 

WHEREAS, all-terrain Vehicles (ATVs) are used by many people of Bethel for year round 
low cost transportation, subsistence hunting and gathering; 

WHEREAS, snow machines and ATVs are used by many members of neighboring 
communities to travel to and from Bethel for shopping, to receive health 
care, to visit, and other reasons; 

WHEREAS, snow machines and ATVs are part of a way of life for many people of Bethel 
and our neighboring communities. They have been so since they first came 
to our community many years ago;  

WHEREAS, there is a concern by all for public safety, and some operators of snow 
machines and ATVs do so in an unsafe manner;

WHEREAS, passed in September 2006, Ordinance 06-21 allowed for some reasonable 
requirements for operation of Snow machines and ATV's on City Streets; 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 13-17, passed in June 2013, deleted most Bethel traffic laws and 
adopted state statute; 

WHEREAS, an unintended consequence of Ordinance 13-17 was superseding operating 
requirements of snow machines and ATVs on city roads; 

WHEREAS, from many locations and houses in Bethel, one cannot travel to/from a 
destination to/from a trail head without going on a city road, at least for a 
short distance.   

WHEREAS, a total ban on operation of a snow machine or ATV on Bethel roads will 
negatively impact the way of life for many citizens of bethel; 

34



Introduced by: Mayor Richard Robb 
 Introduction Date October 11,2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action: 

Vote: 

City of Bethel, Alaska Ordinance 16-31 
Page 2 of 4 

WHEREAS, a total ban on operation of snow machines and ATVs on Bethel roads will 
negatively impact people from neighboring communities coming to Bethel for 
shopping and other services;  

WHEREAS, a total ban on operation of snow machines and ATVs on Bethel roads will 
negatively impact our local economy, as the local economy is dependent 
upon visitors from neighboring communities;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of Bethel Alaska as follows: 

SECTION 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of permanent nature and shall be 
codified within the Bethel Municipal Code. 

SECTION 2.  Amendment: Bethel Municipal Code 10.03 is amended, new language is 
underlined, removed language is stricken.  

10.03.10 Definitions. 
A. “All-Terrain Vehicle” (ATV) means a vehicle with three or more low-pressure, 

flotation-type tires, as designed by the manufacturer or altered, to be used as an 
off-road recreational vehicle. (AS 45.27.390) 

B. “Low-speed vehicles” means a motor vehicle that has four (4) wheels, that was 

manufactured to be capable of propelling itself and achieving a minimum speed 

of twenty (20) miles an hour. 

C. “Snow machines” means a motorized vehicle with a gross vehicle weight under 
1,300 pounds propelled by a track system designed to move a person over snow 
or ice, and includes a snowmobile (AS 45.27.390). 

10.03.010 10.03.020 Operation of low speed vehicles.  

A. Low-speed vehicles are authorized within the city of Bethel, subject to the provisions 

of all state and municipal laws and ordinances. 

B. Low-speed vehicles that operate or cross a city street or state highway may not be 

modified to have a maximum speed greater than twenty-five (25) miles per hour. 

C. “Low-speed vehicles” means a motor vehicle that has four (4) wheels, that was 

manufactured to be capable of propelling itself and achieving a minimum speed of 

twenty (20) miles an hour. 

35



Introduced by: Mayor Richard Robb 
 Introduction Date October 11,2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action: 

Vote: 

City of Bethel, Alaska Ordinance 16-31 
Page 3 of 4 

D. C. Low-speed vehicles must meet weight, equipment, safety standards, vehicle 

registration and insurance requirements set by the Department of Motor Vehicles. 

10.03.030 Operation of Snow Machines.  
A. Snow machines are permitted to operate on city streets subject to following rules 
and regulations: 

1. Snow machines must comply with all City of Bethel and State of Alaska traffic
laws and ordinances.

2. Snow machines must be registered through the Division of Motor Vehicles and
proof of registration must be displayed in the designated location on the vehicle.

3. Snow machines must have liability insurance, and proof of insurance must be
presented upon demand.

4. While driving on a city road, snow machines
a. Must stay on the correct side of the lane of traffic, as far right as feasible, in

the direction of traffic, except when crossing the road;
b. May not pass other moving vehicles;
c. May not weave in and out of traffic;
d. May not operate in any other manner that may be considered careless,

reckless, or negligent.
5. The speed limit for a snow machine on a city road is 15 miles per hour.
6. The speed limit in a parking lot or an area congested with pedestrians is 5 miles

per hour.

10.03.40 Operation of All Terrain Vehicles (ATVs) 
A.  ATV's are permitted to operate on city streets under the following conditions: 

1. ATV's must comply with all City of Bethel and State of Alaska traffic laws and
ordinances.

2. ATV's must be registered through the Division of Motor Vehicles and proof of
registration must be displayed in the designated location on the vehicle.

3. Vehicles must have liability insurance, and proof of insurance must be presented
upon demand.

4. While driving on a city road, ATV's:
a. Must stay on the correct side of the lane of traffic except when crossing the

road;
b. May not pass other moving vehicles;
c. May not weave in and out of traffic;
d. May not operate in any other manner that may be considered careless,

reckless, or negligent.
e. Must be under 1500 pounds (including cargo)

5. The speed limit for an ATV on a city road is 15 miles per hour.

36



Introduced by: Mayor Richard Robb 
 Introduction Date October 11,2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action: 

Vote: 

City of Bethel, Alaska Ordinance 16-31 
Page 4 of 4 

6. The speed limit in a parking lot or an area congested with pedestrians is 5 miles
per hour.

10.03.050 Snow Machine and ATV Driver qualifications 
A. Operators of ATVs and Snow machines on city roads must be 18 years of age or 

older unless: 
1. The minor operator has a valid driver’s license, or
2. The minor operator is accompanied by a parent, legal guardian or other person

at least twenty-one (21) years of age who possesses a valid Alaska driver’s
license within 100 feet or at a reasonable safe distance depending on the
conditions of the terrain.

3. Minor operators must travel the shortest reasonable distance along city roads to
get to/from destination or a trail head.

4. Minor(s) operators must wear approved helmets.

10.03.060 Penalties 
Unless otherwise stated in Alaska statute, violations of this chapter are infractions 
subject to general penalties under Bethel Municipal Code section 1.08.010 General 
penalty. 

SECTION 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective upon passage by 
the Bethel City Council. 

ENACTED THIS _DAY OF October 2016, BY A VOTE OF _ IN FAVOR AND _ 
OPPOSED.  

ATTEST: __________________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor 

________________________ 

Lori Strickler, City Clerk  

37



Suggested Modification to ordinance 16-31 from Council Member Leif Albertson 

10.03.050 Snow Machine and ATV Driver qualifications minor operators and 
passengers  
A. Operators of ATVs and Snow machines on city roads must be 18 years of age or older 

unless: 
1. The minor operator has a valid driver’s license, or
2. The minor operator is accompanied by a parent, legal guardian or other person at

least twenty-one (21) years of age who possesses a valid Alaska driver’s license
within 100 feet or at a reasonable safe distance depending on the conditions of
the terrain.

3. Minor operators must travel the shortest reasonable distance along city roads to
get to/from destination or a trail head.

4. Minor(s) must wear approved helmets. Minors must wear a helmet which meets
safety standards set by the Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards

38



Introduced by: City Manager, Pete Williams 
Date: October 11, 2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action: 

Vote: 

City of Bethel, Alaska    Ordinance #16-32 

1 of 2 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 

Ordinance #16-32 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN 
EASEMENTS/LAND FOR UTILITY EASEMENTS FROM KIPUSVIK, LLC 

INVOLVING INSTITUTIONAL CORRIDOR (I.C.) PIPED WATER SUPPLY AND 
SEWER COLLECTION PROJECT 

Whereas,  the City of Bethel “City” has a grant from the state of Alaska (designated 
legislative grant). To provide for water and sewer improvements known as 
institutional corridor piped water supply and sewer collection project;  

Whereas,  the City has arranged for a multi-phase project to supply water and collect 
sewer through the following described real property, including alignment of 
mains and service lines and other utilities through the easements and right-
of-ways in perpetuity; 

Whereas,   the City needs to acquire these various easements across the properties 
involved in the I.C. water/Sewer project; 

Whereas,  the proposed easements are in the public interest because the easements 
allow the City the land necessary for placement of different utility lines for 
its Projects; 

Whereas,  in accordance with Section 4.08.02 of Bethel Municipal Code, the City 
Council hereby authorize the acquisition of these easements, in the forms 
as set forth in this ordinance; 

Whereas,  Tract 3, BNC INDUSTRIAL PARK, according to the official plat thereof, filed 
under Plat Number 2012-3, in the records of the Bethel Recording District, 
Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, more particularly described as: 

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 

8739P39



Introduced by: City Manager, Pete Williams 
Date: October 11, 2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action: 

Vote: 

City of Bethel, Alaska    Ordinance #16-32 

2 of 2 

A portion of Tract 3, BNC Industrial Park Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2012-3, in 
the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska being more 
particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 

Beginning at the most westerly southwest corner of said Tract 3 being the True 
Point of Beginning for this description; thence on the westerly line thereof, 
N32°02'29"E 329.60 feet to the southwest corner of a public utility easement 
recorded by instrument under Serial No. 2016-000350-0 in the Bethel Recording 
District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska; thence on the southerly line 
thereof N40°44’06”E 99.24 feet; thence departing said line S32°02’29”W 437.57 
feet to the southwesterly line of said Tract 3; thence on said line N24°37’03”W 
17.96 feet to the True Point of Beginning.  Said easement embraces an area of 
5,754 square feet, more or less as calculated from said courses and distances. 

This easement is subject to an existing electric easement. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, the City, in consideration of the agreement 
between Alaska Village Electric Cooperative, INC., the Grantor, and the City of Bethel 
“CITY” the Grantee, mentioned herein, acquires these easements and this ordinance shall 
be recorded with each detailed “PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT” Documents.   

SECTION 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not 
become a part of the Bethel Municipal Code. 

SECTION 2.   Authorization.  Pursuant to Bethel Municipal Code 04.08.020 Acquisition 
of Real Property. 

SECTION 3.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon the passage 
by the Bethel City Council. 

_______________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

8840



City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 4B
Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 1 of 5

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

This Grant of Easement is made this ______ day of _____________, 2016, by and between
KIPUSVIK LLC, hereinafter called Grantor, whose address is P.O. Box 719, Bethel, Alaska 99559,
and the Grantee, CITY OF BETHEL, a municipal corporation of the State of Alaska, its successors
and assigns, hereinafter called “City”, whose address is P.O. Box 1388, Bethel, Alaska 99559.

The Grantor does hereby grant an easement and right-of-way in perpetuity, with the right,
privilege and authority to the City, its successors and assigns, to construct, install, operate,
replace, relocate, maintain and repair above and below ground water lines, sewer lines, waste
heat lines, collection and distribution structures, protective structures, and fire hydrants,
hereinafter collectively called “Utilities” for the purpose of supplying water and collecting
sewage through, across, over and under the following described real property, to wit:

Tract 3, BNC INDUSTRIAL PARK, according to the official plat thereof, filed under Plat
Number 2012-3, in the records of the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District,
State of Alaska;

EXCEPTING THEREFROM the subsurface estate and all rights, privileges, immunities and
appurtenances of whatsoever nature accruing unto said estate pursuant to the Alaska
Native Claims Settlement Act of December 18, 1971 (85 Stat 688, 704; 43 USC 1601,
1613(f) (1976) as reserved by the United States of America in the Patent of said land.

Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Map attached hereto as Page 4 and more particularly
described as follows:

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS Station
BET C and NGS Station BET B. NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W a distance of
2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C. NGS Station BET B has Bethel coordinates of
6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet.

A portion of Tract 3, BNC Industrial Park Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2012-3, in the
Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska being more particularly
described by metes and bounds as follows:

8941



City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 4B
Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 2 of 5

Beginning at the most westerly southwest corner of said Tract 3 being the True Point of
Beginning for this description; thence on the westerly line thereof, N32°02'29"E 329.60
feet to the southwest corner of a public utility easement recorded by instrument under
Serial No. 2016-000350-0 in the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State
of Alaska; thence on the southerly line thereof N40°44’06”E 99.24 feet; thence
departing said line S32°02’29”W 437.57 feet to the southwesterly line of said Tract 3;
thence on said line N24°37’03”W 17.96 feet to the True Point of Beginning. Said
easement embraces an area of 5,754 square feet, more or less as calculated from said
courses and distances.

This easement is subject to an existing electric easement.

Only such rights in the land described shall be acquired as shall be necessary for the
construction, reconstruction, alteration, operation, replacement, relocation, maintenance and
repair of Utilities and appurtenances, reserving unto the Grantor the right to use said property
in any way, and for any purpose consistent with the rights hereby acquired, provided that the
City shall have the right without prior initiation of any suit or proceeding at law, at such times
as may be necessary, to enter upon said property for the purpose herein described without
incurring any legal obligation or liability therefore; and provided that no building or buildings or
other permanent structures shall be constructed or permitted to remain within the boundary of
said easement without written permission of the City, its successors or assigns.

Grantor agrees to hold City harmless and to indemnify and defend City, its employees, agents,
officials, and any other representatives, from and against all claims, demands, suits and costs
arising, in whole or in part, from any damages or other claims resulting from Grantor’s activities
or activities by any person on said property in or on any structures on the easement. Grantor
agrees not to interfere with any lateral support(s) in the area covered by the easement, and will
not excavate or place fill in the areas covered by the easement.

Grantor grants City free ingress and egress to the easement across Grantor’s property. Grantor
grants City free use of Grantor’s property as is necessary for construction, reconstruction,
alteration, operation, replacement, relocation, maintenance and repair of the Utilities.

City shall indemnity Grantor from all liability, claims, demands, suits and costs, arising in whole or in
part, from any damages or other claims resulting directly from the City's ingress and egress on Grantor's
property during any construction, reconstruction, alteration, operation, replacement, relocation,
maintenance or repair of the City owned structures or direct City access to the easement.

The grant and obligations in this Grant of Easement shall be covenants running with the land
and shall be binding on the Grantor, its successors and assigns forever.

9042



City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 4B
Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 3 of 5

Dated this day of , 2016.

KIPUSVIK, LLC

By:
Anastasia Hoffman, Manager
Bethel Native Corporation, Member

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF GRANTOR-CORPORATION

STATE OF ALASKA )
) ss:

Fourth Judicial District )

On this _____ day of _____________, 2016 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and
for the State of Alaska, personally appeared Anastasia Hoffman, Manager of Kipusvik, LLC, the
Grantor, known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing instrument and
who acknowledged to me that she executed the same as the free and voluntary act of said
corporation, with full knowledge of its contents, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and
year above written.

[NOTARY SEAL]

Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska
My Commission Expires: ______________

9143



City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 4B
Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 4 of 5

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the City of Bethel, Grantee herein, after a review by the planning

commission and a majority vote of the city council, hereby accepts for public purposes the real

property, or interest therein, described in this instrument and consents to the recordation

thereof:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this day of , 2016.

By:
Pete Williams, City Manager

After Recording Return to:
City of Bethel
P.O. Box 1388
Bethel, AK 99559

9244



ROW ACQUISITION TYPE:

PARCEL No.

SCALE:

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

CITY OF BETHEL

OWNER'S INITIALS:

PAGE       OF      DATED

DATE:

EXISTING PARCEL AREA:
±

S.F.

ROW ACQUISITION AREA:
±

S.F.

INSTITUTIONAL CORRIDOR PIPED

4b

PUE

1"=80' SEPT 2016

  229,200

WATER DELIVERY SYSTEM

5,754

EXHIBIT A

5 5

9345



Introduced by: City Manager, Pete Williams 
Date: October 11, 2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action: 

Vote: 

City of Bethel, Alaska    Ordinance #16-33 

1 of 2 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 

Ordinance #16-33 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN 
EASEMENTS/LAND FOR UTILITY EASEMENTS FROM BETHEL NATIVE 

CORPORATION (BNC) INVOLVING INSTITUTIONAL CORRIDOR (I.C.) PIPED 
WATER SUPPLY AND SEWER COLLECTION PROJECT 

Whereas,  the City of Bethel “City” has a grant from the state of Alaska (designated 
legislative grant). To provide for water and sewer improvements known as 
institutional corridor piped water supply and sewer collection project;  

Whereas,  the City has arranged for a multi-phase project to supply water and collect 
sewer through the following described real property, including alignment of 
mains and service lines and other utilities through the easements and right-
of-ways in perpetuity; 

Whereas,   the City needs to acquire these various easements across the properties 
involved in the I.C. water/Sewer project; 

Whereas,  the proposed various easements are in the public interest because the 
easements allow the City the land necessary for placement of different 
utility lines for its Projects; 

Whereas,  in accordance with Section 4.08.02 of Bethel Municipal Code, the City 
Council hereby authorize the acquisition of these easements, in the forms 
as set forth in this ordinance; 

Whereas,  That portion of Lot 4, U.S. Survey No. 4117, according to the official survey 
in the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, 
which lies Easterly of the Easterly Right-of-Way line, as said line is described 
in the Right-of-Way Grant to the State of Alaska, recorded May 26, 1969 in 
Book 17 at Page 31. 

Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Map attached hereto as Page 4 and more 
particularly described as follows: 

9446P46



Introduced by: City Manager, Pete Williams 
Date: October 11, 2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action:  

Vote:  

 
 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Ordinance #16-33 

    2 of 2  

    

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plan bearing 
between NGS Station BET C and NGS BET B.  NGS Station BET 
B bears S254ͦ3’ 20.9”W a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS 
Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has Bethel coordinates of 
6,266.8084 N, 7,694,8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 
A portion of Lot 4, U.S. Survey 4117 being more particularly 
described as the westerly 15 feet of said Lot 4.  Said easement 
embraces an area of 3,454 square feet, more or less. 

 
The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, the City, in consideration of the agreement 
between Alaska Village Electric Cooperative, INC., the Grantor, and the City of Bethel 
“CITY” the Grantee, mentioned herein, acquires these easements and this ordinance shall 
be recorded with each detailed “PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT” Documents.   
 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not 

become a part of the Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 2.   Authorization.  Pursuant to Bethel Municipal Code 04.08.020 Acquisition 

of Real Property.   
 
SECTION 3.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon the passage 

by the Bethel City Council.  
 

_______________________  
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

 
 

9547



City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 27
Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 1 of 5

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

This Grant of Easement is made this ______ day of _____________, 2016, by and between
BETHEL NATIVE CORPORATION, hereinafter called Grantor, whose address is P.O. Box 719,
Bethel, Alaska 99559, and the Grantee, CITY OF BETHEL, a municipal corporation of the State of
Alaska, its successors and assigns, hereinafter called “City”, whose address is P.O. Box 1388,
Bethel, Alaska 99559.

The Grantor does hereby grant an easement and right-of-way in perpetuity, with the right,
privilege and authority to the City, its successors and assigns, to construct, install, operate,
replace, relocate, maintain and repair above and below ground water lines, sewer lines, waste
heat lines, collection and distribution structures, protective structures, and fire hydrants,
hereinafter collectively called “Utilities” for the purpose of supplying water and collecting
sewage through, across, over and under the following described real property, to wit:

That portion of Lot 4, U.S. SURVEY NO. 4117, according to the official survey in the
Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, which lies Easterly of
the Easterly State Right-of-Way line, as said line is described in the Right-of-Way Grant
to the State of Alaska, recorded May 26, 1969 in Book 17 at Page 31.

Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Map attached hereto as Page 4 and more particularly
described as follows:

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS Station
BET C and NGS Station BET B. NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W a distance of
2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C. NGS Station BET B has Bethel coordinates of
6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet.

A portion of Lot 4, U.S. Survey 4117 being more particularly described as the westerly 15
feet of said Lot 4. Said easement embraces an area of 3,454 square feet, more or less.

Only such rights in the land described shall be acquired as shall be necessary for the
construction, reconstruction, alteration, operation, replacement, relocation, maintenance and
repair of Utilities and appurtenances, reserving unto the Grantor the right to use said property

9648



City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 27
Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 2 of 5

in any way, and for any purpose consistent with the rights hereby acquired, provided that the
City shall have the right without prior initiation of any suit or proceeding at law, at such times
as may be necessary, to enter upon said property for the purpose herein described without
incurring any legal obligation or liability therefore; and provided that no building or buildings or
other permanent structures shall be constructed or permitted to remain within the boundary of
said easement without written permission of the City, its successors or assigns.

Grantor agrees to hold City harmless and to indemnify and defend City, its employees, agents,
officials, and any other representatives, from and against all claims, demands, suits and costs
arising, in whole or in part, from any damages or other claims resulting from Grantor’s activities
or activities by any person on said property in or on any structures on the easement. Grantor
agrees not to interfere with any lateral support(s) in the area covered by the easement, and will
not excavate or place fill in the areas covered by the easement.

Grantor grants City free ingress and egress to the easement across Grantor’s property. Grantor
grants City free use of Grantor’s property as is necessary for construction, reconstruction,
alteration, operation, replacement, relocation, maintenance and repair of the Utilities.

City shall indemnity Grantor from all liability, claims, demands, suits and costs, arising in whole or in
part, from any damages or other claims resulting directly from the City's ingress and egress on Grantor's
property during any construction, reconstruction, alteration, operation, replacement, relocation,
maintenance or repair of the City owned structures or direct City access to the easement.

The grant and obligations in this Grant of Easement shall be covenants running with the land
and shall be binding on the Grantor, its successors and assigns forever.

Dated this day of , 2016.

BETHEL NATIVE CORPORATION

By:
Anastasia Hoffman, President

By:
Donna Lindsey, Secretary

9749



City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 27
Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 3 of 5

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF GRANTOR-CORPORATION

STATE OF ALASKA )
) ss:

Fourth Judicial District )

On this _____ day of _____________, 2016 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and
for the State of Alaska, personally appeared Anastasia Hoffman, President of Bethel Native
Corporation, the Grantor, known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing
instrument and who acknowledged to me that they executed the same as the free and
voluntary act of said corporation, with full knowledge of its contents, for the uses and purposes
therein mentioned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and
year above written.

[NOTARY SEAL]

Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska
My Commission Expires: ______________

STATE OF ALASKA )
) ss:

Fourth Judicial District )

On this _____ day of _____________, 2016 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and
for the State of Alaska, personally appeared Donna Lindsey, Secretary of Bethel Native
Corporation, the Grantor, known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing
instrument and who acknowledged to me that they executed the same as the free and
voluntary act of said corporation, with full knowledge of its contents, for the uses and purposes
therein mentioned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and
year above written.

[NOTARY SEAL]

Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska
My Commission Expires: ______________

9850



City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 27
Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 4 of 5

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the City of Bethel, Grantee herein, after a review by the planning

commission and a majority vote of the city council, hereby accepts for public purposes the real

property, or interest therein, described in this instrument and consents to the recordation

thereof:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this day of , 2016.

By:
Pete Williams, City Manager

After Recording Return to:
City of Bethel
P.O. Box 1388
Bethel, AK 99559

9951



ROW ACQUISITION TYPE:

PARCEL No.

SCALE:

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

CITY OF BETHEL

OWNER'S INITIALS:

PAGE       OF      DATED

DATE:

EXISTING PARCEL AREA:
±

S.F.

ROW ACQUISITION AREA:
±

S.F.

INSTITUTIONAL CORRIDOR PIPED

27

PUE

1"=40' SEPT 2016

20,303

WATER DELIVERY SYSTEM

3,454

EXHIBIT A

5 5

10052



Introduced by: City Manager, Pete Williams 
Date: October 11, 2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action: 

Vote: 

City of Bethel, Alaska    Ordinance #16-34 

1 of 6 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 

Ordinance #16-34 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN EIGHT 
(8) EASEMENTSS FROM YUKON-KUSKOKWIM HEALTH CORPORATION 
(YKHC) INVOLVING INSTITUTIONAL CORRIDOR (I.C.) PIPED WATER 

SUPPLY AND SEWER COLLECTION PROJECT 

Whereas,  the City of Bethel “City” has a grant from the state of Alaska (designated 
legislative grant). To provide for water and sewer improvements known as 
institutional corridor piped water supply and sewer collection project;  

Whereas,  the City has arranged for a multi-phase project to supply water and collect 
sewer through the following described real property, including alignment of 
mains and service lines and other utilities through the easements and right-
of-ways in perpetuity; 

Whereas,   the City needs to acquire these various easements across the properties 
involved in the I.C. water/Sewer project; 

Whereas,  the proposed various easements are in the public interest because the 
easements allow the City the land necessary for placement of different 
utility lines for its Projects; 

Whereas,  in accordance with Section 4.08.02 of Bethel Municipal Code, the City 
Council hereby authorize the acquisition of these easements, in the forms 
as set forth in this ordinance; 

Whereas,  Easement #1: (Parcel 2) Lot 3B, of Tract 5A1, U.S. SURVEY 4000, according 
to Plat 99-1, filed in the records of the Bethel Recording District, Fourth 
Judicial District, State of Alaska, more particularly described as: 

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S 25º43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 

10153P53



Introduced by: City Manager, Pete Williams 
Date: October 11, 2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action: 

Vote: 

City of Bethel, Alaska    Ordinance #16-34 

2 of 6 

A portion of Lot 3B, Tract 5A1, U.S. Survey 4000 filed as Plat No. 99-1 in the 
Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska being more 
particularly described as the westerly 15 feet of said Lot 3B.  Said easement 
embraces an area of 1,910 square feet, more or less. 

Easement #2: (Parcel 3) Lot 5, of Tract 5A1, U.S. SURVEY 4000, according to 
Plat 98-14, filed in the records of the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial 
District, State of Alaska, more particularly described as: 

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S 25º43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 

A portion of Lot 5, Tract 5A1, U.S. Survey 4000 filed as Plat No. 98-14 in the 
Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska being more 
particularly described as the westerly 15 feet of said Lot 5.  Said easement 
embraces an area of 7,149 square feet, more or less. 

Easement #3: (Parcel 16) That portion of Lot 3, U.S. SURVEY 4117, WEST 
ADDITION TO BETHEL, according to the official survey in the Bethel Recording 
District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, which lies westerly of the 
westerly State Right-of-Way line, as said line is described in the deed to the 
State of Alaska, recorded December 3, 1968, in Book 16 at Page 351, more 
particularly described as: 

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S 25º43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 

A portion of Lot 3, U.S. Survey 4117 being more particularly described as the 
north 15 feet of said Lot 3.  Said easement embraces an area of 9,573 square 
feet, more or less. 

Easement #4: (Parcel 17B) That portion of Lot 4C, Subdivision of Lot 4, Survey 
No. 4117, according to Plat No. 84-18 and 84-20, lying within Lot 54, U.S. Survey 
No. 4117, according to the official Bureau of Land Management survey plat 

10254



Introduced by: City Manager, Pete Williams 
Date: October 11, 2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action:  

Vote:  

 
 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Ordinance #16-34 

    3 of 6  

    

thereof, officially filed March 31, 2004, located in the Bethel Recording District, 
Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, more particularly described as: 
The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S 25º43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 
A portion of Lot 54, U.S. Survey 4117 being more particularly described as the 
most northerly north 30 feet of said Lot 54.  Said easement embraces an area of 
3,998 square feet, more or less. 
 
This easement is subject to existing waste heat line and electric easements. 
 
Easement #5: (Parcel 19A) Lot 52, U.S. SURVEY 4117, according to the official 
Bureau of Land Management survey plat thereof, officially filed March 31, 2004, 
located in the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska. 
 
Excepting therefrom the subsurface estate as reserved in Deed recorded on 
December 19, 1985, at Book 42, Page 526, located in the Bethel Recording 
District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, more particularly described as: 
 
The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S 25º43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 
A portion of Lot 52, U.S. Survey 4117 being more particularly described as the 
east 36.00 feet of said Lot 52.  Said easement embraces an area of 3,105 square 
feet, more or less. 
 
This easement is subject to existing waste heat line, electric, sewer and water 
easements. 
 
Easement #6: (Parcel 19B): That portion of Lot 4C, Subdivision of Lot 4, U.S. 
Survey No. 4117, according to Plat No. 84-18 and 84-20, lying within Lot 55, U.S. 
Survey No. 4117, according to the official Bureau of Land Management survey 
plat thereof, officially filed March 31, 2004, located in the Bethel Recording 
District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska.  
 

10355



Introduced by: City Manager, Pete Williams 
Date: October 11, 2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action:  

Vote:  

 
 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Ordinance #16-34 

    4 of 6  

    

Excepting therefrom the subsurface estate as reserved in Deed recorded on 
December 19, 1985, at Book 42, Page 526, in the Bethel Recording District, 
Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, more particularly described as: 
 
The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S 25º43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 
A portion of Lot 55, U.S. Survey 4117 being more particularly described as the 
north 30.00 feet of said Lot 55.  Said easement embraces an area of 2,608 
square feet, more or less. 
 
This easement is subject to existing waste heat line and electric easements. 
 
Easement #7: (Parcel 19C) Lot 50, U.S. Survey No. 4117, according to the 
official Bureau of Land Management survey plat thereof, officially filed March 31, 
2004, located in the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of 
Alaska. 
 
Excepting therefrom the subsurface estate as reserved in Deed recorded on 
December 19, 1985, at Book 42, Page 526, in the Bethel Recording District, 
Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, more particularly described as: 
 
The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S 25º43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 
A portion of Lot 50, U.S. Survey 4117 being more particularly described by metes 
and bounds as follows: 
 
Commencing at the north corner of said Lot 50; thence on the west line thereof 
S09°45’57”W 205.05 feet to the centerline of a 20 foot waste heat line easement 
as shown on the Plat of Waste Line Easement into Lot 5 of USS 4117 filed as Plat 
No. 95-3, in the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska 
being the True Point of Beginning for this description; thence on said centerline 
S73°35’06”E 36.24 feet to the east line of Lot 50; thence on said line 
S00°00’17”W 10.42 feet to a point on the south line of said waste heat line 

10456



Introduced by: City Manager, Pete Williams 
Date: October 11, 2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action:  

Vote:  

 
 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Ordinance #16-34 

    5 of 6  

    

easement; thence on said south line N73°35’06”W 38.02 feet to the west line of 
Lot 50; thence on said line N09°45’57”E 10.07 feet to the True Point of 
Beginning for this description.  Said easement embraces an area of 371 square 
feet, more or less, as calculated from said courses and distances. 
 
This easement lies entirely within an existing waste heat line easement. 
 
Easement #8: (Parcel 24B) Lot 2, U.S. SURVEY 4000, according to the official 
Bureau of Land Management Survey Plat thereof, officially filed December 22, 
1989, being located in the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State 
of Alaska, more particularly described as: 
 
The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S 25º43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 
A portion of Lot 2, U.S. Survey 4000 being more particularly described by metes 
and bounds as follows: 
 
Beginning at the northeast corner of said Lot 2, being the True Point of 
Beginning for this description; thence on the east line thereof S24°33’37”E 
331.54 feet to the southeast corner of said Lot 2 also being a point on a non-
tangent curve concave to the southeast having a radius of 766.20 feet and 
whose center bears S04°26’22”W; thence on the southerly line thereof, 
southwesterly on said curve 834.43 feet through a central angle of 62°23’53”; 
thence continuing on the southerly line S32°02’29”W 111.28 feet; thence 
departing said line N57°57’31”W 15.00 feet; thence N32°02’29”E 111.28 feet to 
a point of curvature of a curve concave to the southeast having a radius of 
781.20 feet; thence northeasterly on said curve 825.52 feet through a central 
angle of 60°32’48”; thence N24°33’37”W 291.53 feet; thence S65°23’55”W 
449.19 feet; thence N65°19’03”W 19.79 feet to the northerly line of Lot 2; 
thence on said northerly line N65°23’55”E 477.11 feet to the True Point of 
Beginning.  Said easement embraces an area of 25,737 square feet, more or less 
as calculated from said arcs, courses and distances. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, the City, in consideration of the agreement 
between Alaska Village Electric Cooperative, INC., the Grantor, and the City of Bethel 

10557



Introduced by: City Manager, Pete Williams 
Date: October 11, 2016 

Public Hearing: October 25, 2016 
Action:  

Vote:  

 
 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Ordinance #16-34 

    6 of 6  

    

“CITY” the Grantee, mentioned herein, acquires these easements and this ordinance shall 
be recorded with each detailed “PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT” Documents.   
 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not 

become a part of the Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 2.   Authorization.  Pursuant to Bethel Municipal Code 04.08.020 Acquisition 

of Real Property.   
 
SECTION 3.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon the passage 

by the Bethel City Council.  
 

_______________________  
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

 
 

10658



10759



10860



10961



11062



11163



11264



11365



11466



11567



11668



11769



11870



11971



12072



12173



12274



12375



12476



12577



12678



12779



12880



12981



13082



13183



Introduced by: Vice- Mayor Maczynski 
Date: September 13, 2016 

September 27, 2016 
October 11, 2016 
October 25, 2016 

Action:
Vote:

City of Bethel, Alaska  Resolution #16-27 
1 of 1  

CITY OF BETHEL 

Resolution # 16-27 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE DEVELOPMENT OF BETHEL AIRPORT 
IMPROVEMENTS 

WHEREAS, the City of Bethel is a 2nd Class Incorporated Community; and 

WHEREAS, the Bethel City Council is the recognized governing body for the City of 
Bethel; and 

WHEREAS, the Bethel airport is a needed part of the local infrastructure that will serve 
both the social and economic needs of Bethel and the Yukon/Kuskokwim 
Delta; and 

WHEREAS, the Bethel airport is in need of improvements to increase the efficiency and 
safety for aircraft and airport operations and maintenance; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities is 
committed to work closely with the City of Bethel to plan and design the 
airport improvement project. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City of Bethel City Council fully 
supports the State of Alaska’s efforts to implement improvements at the Bethel Airport. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 11th DAY OF OCTOBER 2016, BY A ____ VOTE 
IN FAVOR AND A ____VOTE IN OPPOSITION. 

___________________________  
 Richard Robb, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
 Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

84



16-66
September 27, 2016

16-66
85



86



87



16 07

16-07
88



16 07

16-07
89



16-70
October 11, 2016

90



91



92



Celebrating 50 Years of Service! 

 

To: Bethel City Council Members 

From: Bill Ferguson, Transit Manager 

Subject:  FY 2018 Alaska Community Transit Grant Application 

Date: September 26, 2016 

The FY 18 Transit Grant Application period is from October 3, 2016 to December 16, 2016. 

John Sargent, City's Grant Manager, will be working on the grant application.  The Grant 

requires a match amount of $80,580 or 32 percent. The City has provided the match for the last 

couple of years.  When you consider whether to allocate this match amount for the FY 18 grant, 

please consider what the Transit System provides for the community: 

1. Elders, those 65 years old and older, represent 35 to 45 percent of the ridership. These

people are on a fixed income and have little extra money to spare. They live one step 

above being part of the homeless population. In many cases, when they pay the bus fare, 

it's in quarters, nickels, dimes, and pennies. When using the bus, they are usually heading 

to the hospital for an appointment, to the Post Office to get their mail, or to the grocery 

store story to buy food.   

2. The second group of people we serve are those going to and from work. There are 6-8

people who depend on the Transit System to get to and from work on a regular base.  In 

most cases, these are people who are working in lower paying jobs and rely on housing 

assistance or low priced rental units because their income is limited and they can’t afford 

to buy a vehicle.  

3. The third group are people with a disability.  The Transit System averages six to eight

passengers daily who have some type of disability.  There are several who use walkers, 

one who is blind, two who are deaf, several that use canes, and several who are mentally 

handicapped.

4. The fourth group are our youth. This is a small part of the ridership, but an important

one.  We have students who are going to YUUT for ABE classes and other classes.  We 

City of Bethel 
P.O. Box 1388  Bethel, Alaska 99559-1388 

907-543-1386 
Fax # 543-1388 

Website: www.cityofbethel.org 

93



Celebrating 50 Years of Service! 

have youth who are going to the Aquatic Center and others going with a parent(s) to the 

hospital and/or dental clinic. We give rides to schools’ kids who miss their school bus. 

5. The fifth group are those without a vehicle, likely due to the fact that the cost to operate

one is prohibitive. This group includes most of the general population that rides the bus.  

They are going to the hospital, post office, shopping, banking, and etc.  This is the 

majority of the ridership.  Occasionally, we see people riding the bus who are from one of 

the villages.

The Bethel Transit System made some major improvements this year.  Through a special Federal 

Grant and local match, we were able to purchase 15 new Bus Stop Shelters. These were placed 

around town during the past couple of weeks.  In most cases, these Bus Stop Shelters will serve a 

dual population, serving school students and transit riders. The shelters are clear and without 

seats to discourage people from using them for other purposes.  In addition, we have ordered two 

new buses, 12 to 14 passenger, and they should arrive on the first barge in 2017. 

We’re currently running two bus schedules, the Green Line and Red Line.  The only difference 

between the two is that the Green Line goes to TWC and the Red Line doesn’t.  The Red Line 

goes to the Aquatic Center/Yuut and City Sub, and the Green Line doesn’t. The Green Line starts 

at 6:30 am and ends at 6:30 pm. The Red Line starts at 9:00 am and ends at 3:00 pm.  

Passengers have several options for purchasing a bus ticket.  The trip fare for adults is $3.00, for 

Youth $2.00 and Seniors $1.00.  We offer Adult/Youth Day Passes for $5.00, which entitles 

riders to ride either the Green Line or Red Line, any time during the day.  We offer an Adult 

Monthly Pass for $60.00. It’s good from the beginning of the month to the end of that month. We 

also offer a FREE Senior Yearly Pass, for seniors who are 75 years old and older. They can use it 

anytime.   

I hope this information helps you make your decision on whether or not to support the Bethel 

Transit System and provide the match amount for the City’s FY 18 Grant application. 

94



New Business 

95



Introduced by:

Introduction Date:

Public Hearing:

Action:

Vote:

Section 1.  That the following sums of money as may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

Change to E-911

Increases

41-50-649 Other Professional Services 40,667 

Total Increases 40,667 

Decreases

Total Decreases 0 

TOTAL Net Change to E-911 Fund Appropriations 40,667 

Change to Revenues  Increase/(Decrease) 0

Change to Appropriations  Increase/(Decrease) 40,667

These changes INCREASE↑ the overall expenditures/expenses of the City by 40,667

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS __ DAY OF NOVEMBER 2016 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ OPPOSED.

ATTEST:

_____________________________

Lori Strickler, City Clerk

Peter Williams, Acting City 
Manager

October 25, 2017

ORDINANCE # 16-17 (b)

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

expenses and liabilities of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and objects of the City hereinafter specified for 

Fiscal Year 2017, July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017.

TOTAL CHANGE TO OVERALL CITY BUDGET

____________________________________

Richard Robb, Mayor

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2017 Budget

Be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that the FY 2017 Annual Budget be amended as follows:

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

E-911 Services (41)

         City of Bethel
Ordinance # 16-17 (b)

1 of 1

96



 
   CITY OF BETHEL 
     Finance Director’s Office 

              P.O. Box 1388 
  Bethel, Alaska  99559 

  Ph. (907) 543-1376 

 Fax (907) 543-5294 

 

Memorandum 
To: Bethel City Council 

Cc: Peter Williams, Acting City Manager 

From: Hansel L Mathlaw, Acting Finance Director    

Date: October 18, 2016 

Re: Justifications for Budget Modification Request E-911  
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Listed below is an explanation for the budget modification requested in Ordinance # 
 

 
This budget modification relates to the contract with ProComm Alaska.  The Police 
Department has installed a new E-911 systems for the City of Bethel.  The next step in the 
process is for updates and software support for the new system.  Further details can be 
found in the “ProComm Alaska E-911 Managed Services Agreement.” 
 
The funds to support the new system will come from the special revenue fund called “E-911 
Services Fund.”  The City of Bethel receives $2.00 for each telephone bill that is sent out by 
GCI and UUI.   
 
The contract with ProComm is for five (5) years at $203,355 OR $40,667 annually.  At the 
beginning of the fiscal year the cumulative balance from prior years summed up to 
$416,066.  Meaning revenues were more than expenditures.  
 
 

97



Introduced by:

Introduction Date:

Public Hearing: November 8, 2016

Action:

Vote:

Section 1.  That the following sums of money as may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

Change to Janitorial Court Complex

Increases

53-55-663 Janitorial Court Complex 27,617 

Total Increases 27,617 

Decreases

Total Decreases 0 

TOTAL Net Change to Leased Poperty - Court Complex Fund Appropriations 27,617 

Change to Revenues  Increase/(Decrease) 0

Change to Appropriations  Increase/(Decrease) 27,617

These changes INCREASE↑ the overall expenditures/expenses of the City by 27,617

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS __ DAY OF NOVEMBER 2016 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ OPPOSED.

ATTEST:

_____________________________

Lori Strickler, City Clerk

Peter Williams, Acting City 
Manager

October 25, 2017

ORDINANCE # 17-16 ( c )

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

expenses and liabilities of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and objects of the City hereinafter specified for 

Fiscal Year 2017, July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017.

TOTAL CHANGE TO OVERALL CITY BUDGET

____________________________________

Richard Robb, Mayor

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2017 Budget

Be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that the FY 2017 Annual Budget be amended as follows:

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

Leased Property Court Complex (53)

         City of Bethel
Ordinance # 16-17 ( c )

1 of 1

98



 
   CITY OF BETHEL 
     Finance Director’s Office 

              P.O. Box 1388 
  Bethel, Alaska 99559 

  Ph. (907) 543-1376 

 Fax (907) 543-5294 

 

Memorandum 
To: Bethel City Council 

Cc: Peter Williams, Acting City Manager 

From: Hansel L Mathlaw, Acting Finance Director    

Date: October 18, 2016 

Re: Justifications for Budget Modification Request Janitorial Court Complex 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Listed below is an explanation for the budget modification requested in Ordinance # 

 

 
RFP was submitted and returned for janitorial services for the court complex.  The amount 
submitted was $61,422/annually or $5,118.50/monthly.  The amount will go into effect as 
soon as council approves the award.  The original amount budgeted for the court complex 
was $32,900 (see FY17 Budget, page 93).  The amount was for two parts for the court 
house, 1) Court System ($2,050) and 2) Department of Law ($685). (2,050+685) X 12 = 
$32,820. 
 
The Court System janitorial increased by $3,068.50/month times nine (9) months (October-
June) = $27,616.50.  
 
The budget modification reflects the change.  

99



City of Bethel Action Memorandum 

Action memorandum No. 
Date action introduced: Introduced by:  
Date action taken:   Approved       Denied 
Confirmed by: 

AM No. 

Route to:  Department/Individual: Initials: Remarks: 

Attachment(s): 

Amount of fiscal impact: Account information: 
No fiscal impact 
Funds are budgeted for. 
Funds are not budgeted. 
Budget modification is required. 

71

71 100



101



102



103



City of Bethel Action Memorandum 

Action memorandum No. 16-72 

Date action introduced: October 25, 2016 Introduced by:  Mayor Robb 

Date action taken: ▒ Approved  ▒  Denied 

Confirmed by: 

AM No. 16-72 Page 1 

SUBJECT/ACTION: 

Approve Mayor’s reappointment of Juan Delgado to the Energy Committee 

Route to: Department/Individual: Initials: Remarks: 

Attachment(s): None 

Amount of fiscal 
impact 

Account information: 

X No fiscal impact 

Action memorandum 16-72 is sponsored by the Mayor at the request of the City Clerk. 

Juan Delgado has requested re-appointment to the Energy Committee. If appointed, he 

would be appointed to a term of three years with a term expiration of December 31, 

2018. 

104



16-73
10-25-2016

AM 16-67
105



  

 

 

 

CITY OF BETHEL 

BETHEL, ALASKA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUEST FOR BIDS 
 

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR CITY HALL 

 

 

 

Bid Packages will be accepted from October 18, 2016 to November 8, 2016 
 

 

 Bid Package Opening (Due) Date: November 8, 2016 
 

 Bid Package Opening (Due) Time: 4:00 pm Alaska Time 
 
 Bid Package Opening Place: City Hall 
  300 State Highway 
  Bethel, Alaska  99559

106



 Page 2 of 9 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
1. Purpose 
The City of Bethel is seeking bid packages from qualified companies to provide janitorial services 

over a one-year period for City Hall in Bethel, Alaska. The performance period is expected to be 

November 23, 2016 to November 22, 2017. 

 

2. Overview 
 

The City of Bethel owns and operates the City Hall building. The building consists of a number of 

offices, carpeted hallways, carpeted council chambers, linoleum floor entryway, short hallway, 

and lobby. The Division of Motor Vehicles public access area is included in the RFB for cleaning. 

 

The building is occupied during the day from 8 am to 5 pm, and Council Chambers is used on 

certain nights from 6:00 pm to approximately 8:30 pm for City committee meetings. Council 

chambers is used by city council every second and fourth Tuesday from 6:30 pm to 11:00 pm. 

 

3. Scope of Work 
 

Two Times Per Week 

Wednesday and one weekend day (between 5:30 pm Friday and 7:00 am Monday). 

 

Janitor will not disturb any office materials or use telephones or other equipment. All personal 

items of office occupants must be left undisturbed. 

 

Equipment, chairs, waste baskets and other items may be moved for cleaning purposes, but must 

be returned to their original location/position. If any electrical cords are disconnected in order for 

the Janitor to operate a vacuum or other cleaning tool, the cords must be plugged back into the 

outlets. 

 

Janitor supervisor will inspect the entire area to ensure all work is completed and all necessary 

doors are locked, lights turned off, and furniture, fixtures, and baskets are in their proper place. 

 

The Division of Motor Vehicles office area will be cleaned on the public side of the counter only. 

The employee side of the counter shall not be cleaned. No janitorial staff members should set foot 

on this side of the counter. 

 

Services to be Provided 
1. Empty waste baskets in all offices in the building, including the Department of Motor 

Vehicles Office near the front door. Collect all trash from waste baskets and remove trash 

from the building. A public dumpster is located next door at City Hall on the side of the 

Courthouse. Place new plastic trash bags in waste baskets, as needed. Janitor to supply all 

bags required. 

2. Vacuum hallways, office floors and all carpets. 

3. Bathrooms: Mop or scrub toilet room floors, clean all plumbing fixtures, disinfect urinals 

and toilets, damp wipe all dispensers. Provide and restock adequate supplies of toilet paper, 

107



 Page 3 of 9 

 

paper towels, soap, and other janitorial supplies. 

4. Mop or scrub all linoleum floors. 

 

It is the contractor’s responsibility to provide all of the labor, equipment, supplies and materials 

necessary to accomplish the janitorial work described in this Request for Bids document. The 

work area includes all office spaces, common public stairways, hallways, and lobbies. 

 

Standard commercial grade products, supplies, paper goods, and plastic trash bags must be 

supplied. These items are subject to inspection and approval by the City. 

  

Inadequate Janitorial Work 

 

Failure to provide any of the janitorial services described above will cause the City to issue a 

written warning to the Contractor.  If the deficiency is not corrected within twenty-four (24) hours 

of notification, the City will hire another janitorial firm to correct for the inadequacy and deduct 

that cost from the next payment to the Contractor.  More than two (2) valid inadequacy claims in 

a thirty (30) day period or a total of five (5) valid inadequacy claims in a six (6) month period will 

be grounds for the City to require that the present janitorial contractor be replaced by a contractor 

approved by the City. 

 

Respondents must have either a cellular phone or a message recorder at their home or office, so 

they can be reached during normal City business hours, 8:00 am to 5:00 pm, Monday through 

Friday as well as phone or text messaging service.  

 

Building Security 

 

Building security is of the very highest priority and lack of attention or carelessness in this area 

shall be cause for termination of the contract.   

 

The Janitor shall keep the outside doors locked at all times, except when the building is normally 

open to the public.  Interior building doors will remain locked except while work in the immediate 

area is in progress.  All doors will be locked when the janitor(s) leave(s) the building. 

 

4. General Conditions 
 

The City has a right to determine the qualifications of any respondent to provide quality bid 

package as specified in this Request for Bids document and in the time frame desired by the City.  

 

The City reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to reject any and all bid package submissions 

without prejudice to respondents, and to extend the opening date for receiving bid packages.  

 

The City may accept one of the bids, subject to funds legally available and lawfully 

appropriated for the purposes set out in this Request for Bids document. The City will indicate its 

bid selection by a written Notice of Award, emailed or faxed to the successful respondent(s). 

 

108



 Page 4 of 9 

 

The successful respondent(s) shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws, City 

ordinances, and the rules and regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over the fulfillment 

of the intended purchase as the purchase is described in this Request for Bids document. 

 

Prices shall include all Federal and State of Alaska taxes. This purchase is exempt from City Sales 

taxes.  

 

Bid packages must be legible. 

 

All bids must be valid for a minimum of thirty (30) days from bid opening date. 

 

Bid Packages 

 

Bid packages may be withdrawn or modified prior to the scheduled date and time for the bid 

opening or before any authorized postponement thereof. Any bid or bid modification received 

after the time and date specified shall NOT be considered. No respondent may withdraw a bid 

within thirty (30) days after the Opening Date. Conditional proposals will NOT be accepted. 

 

Vendor in Good Standing 

 

According to the Bethel Municipal Code 4.20.070: “No procurement contract may be awarded to 

a person, group, organization, or entity that is delinquent in the payment or collection of sales 

taxes, fees, charges, penalties, interest or other amounts that are due owing, or otherwise obligated 

to the City which is not remedied within ten (10) business days of notice to the selected bidder. 

See Bethel Municipal Code on City website (www.cityofbethel.org). 

 

Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s Insurance 

 

The Contractor shall obtain during the life of this agreement, all of the following insurance 

coverages and adhere to the requirements contained in this section.  

 
1. Errors and Omissions (Professional Liability) of not less than One Million ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence. 

 
2. Endorsements. The comprehensive/commercial general insurance policy shall contain or be 

endorsed to contain the following provisions: 
 

a. Additional insureds. “The City of Bethel and its elected and appointed boards, officers, 

agents, and employees, are additional insureds with respect to this contract with the City 

to provide janitorial services.” 

b. Notice. “Said policy shall not terminate, nor shall it be cancelled, nor the coverage 

reduced, until thirty (30) days after written notice is given to City.” 

c. Other insurance. “Any other insurance maintained by the City of Bethel shall be excess 

and not contributing with the insurance provided by this policy.” 

 
3. Worker’s Compensation Insurance 

 

109

http://www.cityofbethel.org/


 Page 5 of 9 

 

The successful respondent shall procure and maintain Worker’s Compensation Insurance 

as required by the State of Alaska for all of his/her employees to be engaged in work at the 

site of the project under the agreement.  In case of any work sublet, the Contractor shall 

require the subcontractor similarly to provide Worker’s Compensation Insurance for all of 

the latter’s employees to be engaged in such work unless such employees are covered by 

the protection afforded by the Contractor’s Worker’s Compensation Insurance. In the case 

where any class of employees engages in hazardous work on the project under the 

agreement and are not protected under the Workmen’s Compensation Statute, the 

Contractor shall provide and cause each subcontractor to provide adequate employer’s 

liability insurance for the protection of his/her employees who are not otherwise protected. 

4. Contractor’s Liability Insurance 

 

The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of the agreement, Contractor’s 

Public Liability Insurance, Contractor’s Damage Insurance, and Vehicle Liability 

Insurance. 

 
5. Subcontractor’s Liability Insurance 

 

The Contractor shall either: (a) require each of his/her subcontractors to procure and 

maintain during the life of his/her subcontract, Subcontractor’s Public Liability, Property 

Damage Insurance, and Vehicle Liability Insurance of the type specified in subparagraph 

two (2) above or, (b) insure the activities of his/her subcontractor in his/her policy 

specified in subparagraph two (2) above. 

 
6. Scope of Insurance and Special Hazards 

 

The insurance required under subparagraphs two (2) and three (3) above shall provide 

adequate protection for the Contractor and his/her subcontractors, respectively, against 

damage claims which may arise from operations under the agreement, whether such 

operations under the agreement be by the insured or by any one directly or indirectly 

employed by him/her, and also against any of the special hazards which may be 

encountered in the performance of the agreement. 

 

7. Proof of Carriage of Insurance 

 

The Contractor shall furnish the City with certificates showing the type, amount, class of 

operations covered, effective dates and dates of expirations of policies.  Such certificates 

shall also contain substantially the following statement: 

 

“The insurance covered by this certificate will not be cancelled or materially altered, 

except after thirty (30) days written notice has been received by the City of Bethel.” 

 

License Requirements 

 

Contractors and subcontractors are required to hold a current State of Alaska business license and 

110



 Page 6 of 9 

 

a current City of Bethel business license. 

 

The City of Bethel, prior to subcontracting, must approve any subcontractor of this contract.  

Proof of subcontractor’s compliance with the above shall be submitted to the City of Bethel 

proceeding with any subcontract work on public contracts. 

 
Complaints 

 

Protests regarding any alleged improprieties or ambiguities in this request for bids document must 

be filed with the purchasing agent at least (10) business days before the due date for bid packages. 

Failure to meet this timeline shall constitute a waiver of the protesting party’s rights and bar any 

further action regarding this matter.  Additional information regarding the rights and remedies 

available to interested parties can be found on the City’s website at www.cityofbethel.org, Section 

4.20 (Purchasing). 

 

5. Instructions for Preparing and Submitting Bid Packages 
 

1. Read the Request for Bids document. Direct technical questions about the project or questions 

about the RFB to the Finance Director Hansel Mathlaw by email only, at 

(hmathlaw@cityofbethel.net). At Mr. Mathlaw’s discretion, addendums to this RFB may be 

issued based on questions and comments received by the date specified in the timeline. 

 

2. Visit the City’s Website at www.cityofbethel.org and follow these links for all addenda 

associated with this Request for Bids document: Doing Business > Request for Bids/Proposals > 

Addenda #. Addenda will ONLY be posted to the City’s website for easy access by potential 

bidders. 

 

3. Prepare and submit the following items to the City by fax, email, mail, or private carrier on or 

before the deadline: 

 

1. Signature and Verification (Attachment A) 

 

2. Price Sheet (Attachment B) 

 

4. Submit Bid Package to the City of Bethel by the deadline. 

 

Hard Copy Submission 

 

Bid packages submitted in hard copy form must be in an envelope and marked, “Bid Package for 

City Hall Janitorial Services.” Bid packages must be received at the Bethel City Hall on or before 

the Opening Date and Time shown on the cover of this document. 

 

Mail complete proposal package to: Deliver bid package to: 

Hansel Mathlaw, Purchasing Agent Hansel Mathlaw, Purchasing Agent  

City of Bethel City Hall, 300 State Highway 

PO Box 1388 Bethel, Alaska 99559 

111

mailto:acapela@cityofbethel.net
http://www.cityofbethel.org/


 Page 7 of 9 

 

Bethel, AK 99559  

 

Electronic Submission 

 

Bid packages may be submitted by fax or email. Bid packages submitted by email must be in 

either MS Word format or PDF format and sent to Hansel Mathlaw by email at 

(hmathlaw@cityofbethel.net) or by fax: 907-543-3817. In the subject line, put “Bid Package for 

City Hall Janitorial Services.” The City is not responsible for incomplete transmissions or 

unsuccessful delivery by electronic means. An email will be sent by the City acknowledging 

receipt of the bid package. 

 

Addenda and Notifications 

 

All addenda related to this RFB will be posted on the City’s website (www.cityofbethel.org) and 

can be found by following these links: Doing Business > Request for Proposals/Bids > 

Addendum. Bidders are responsible for visiting the City’s website throughout the bid period to 

read and respond appropriately to information contained in addenda. Per Bethel Municipal Code 

4.20.050 D. “Only a bid/proposal which acknowledges receipt of all addenda may be considered 

responsive.” Bidders must complete Attachment A, sign it, and submit it with their bid package as 

formal acknowledgement of addenda. 

 

6. Evaluation of Bid Package  
 

All proposals submitted shall be good for a minimum of thirty (30) days. Criteria for the award 

shall be based on the lowest total price. The City will award a contract to one company.  

 

7. Timeline 
 

 

Date 

 

Event 

October 18, 2016 RFB Issued 

October 27, 2016 Deadline for questions about RFB contents. 

October 27, 2016 Deadline for protests regarding contents of RFB. 

November 8, 2016 Bid packages due to the City. 

November 9, 2016 Bid packages evaluated and selection made. 

November 23, 2016 Anticipated contract approval by City Council. 

November 23, 2016 – 

November 22, 2019 Performance period. 

 

The City reserves the right to adjust the timeline with notice to prospective bidders through the 

issuance of an addendum available on the City’s website (www.cityofbethel.org > Doing 

Business > Request for Bids/Proposals). 
  

112

http://www.cityofbethel.org/
http://www.cityofbethel.org/


1 

 

Attachment A 
 

SIGNATURE AND VERIFICATION 
 

 

By signing below, I hereby acknowledge the following: 

 

1. Bidder, nor any of their representatives or third party mandated by Bidder, has attempted 

to contact City representatives or members of the selection committee for the purpose of 

influencing their choice, judgment or recommendation relating to the contract, or with 

members of the City Council to influence their decision; 

 

2. Bidder has produced the bid package without collusion, communication, agreement or 

arrangement with a competitor with regards to price, methods, factors or formulas for 

setting prices, to the decision to submit a bid package or to present a bid package that 

does not comply, directly or indirectly, with specifications contained in the Request for 

Bids; 

 

3. Neither the bidder nor any of its representatives engaged in discrimination, intimidating 

measures, influence peddling or corruption or entered into any form of collusion, 

communication, agreement or arrangement with other suppliers or third parties relating 

to a contract with the City of Bethel. 

 

Acknowledgement of Receipt of Addenda 

 

4. I hereby acknowledge receipt of any and all addenda. 

 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Signature Date 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Printed Name  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To find addenda, please visit the City of Bethel’s website at www.cityofbethel.org > Doing 

Business > Request for Proposals/Bids > Addendum #. 

113

http://www.cityofbethel.org/


2 

 

Attachment B 

 

PRICE SHEET 
 

PROVISION OF JANITORIAL SERVICES 
TO CLEAN CITY HALL 

 

 

A. Price Sheet Instructions 

 Provide the total price per year for each of the three years of the service contract: 

 

Clean City Hall per RFB and Contract 
Price 

One full year (November 23, 2016 – November 22, 2017)  

 

 

B. SIGNATURE AND VERIFICATION 

Pursuant to and in compliance with the City of Bethel’s Request for Bids document, the 

undersigned hereby proposes to provide janitorial services as specified in this Request for 

Bids document for the total price given on this sheet. 

 

Respondent 

Name (printed): 

 

 

Title: 

 

Company Name and Mailing Address: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Telephone Number: 

 

Fax Number: 

 

E-mail Address: 

 

Signature: 

 

 

 

 

114



Exhibit C 
Confidentiality Agreement 

 
 I,      , as an employee of Kagista-Janitorial Services, 

understand that while cleaning the Bethel Courthouse, I may come into contact with or 

may observe confidential information.  Such information may include, but is not limited to, 

draft court opinions, internal memoranda, records relating to personnel issues, 

procurement proceedings, internal policy or administrative documents.  I may also 

overhear confidential conversations. 

 I agree that anything I see or hear at the Bethel Courthouse while performing my 

official duties for Kagista-Janitorial Services is to be kept confidential.  I understand this 

means I may not copy, photograph, discuss or share any information which I may see, 

hear or in any way learn about.   

 I acknowledge that I fully understand even one violation of this Confidentiality 

Agreement may result in my permanent removal from the Premises. 

 

            

Signature      Dated 

 

 

115



116



117



16-74
Oct. 25, 2016

xxxxxxx 16-74
118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



Capital Project Options 

City of Bethel Needs 

Fire Department 

 Water Tender Truck
3,000 gallon water truck. 

 Ladder Truck
Ladder would be 80-100 ft., tall enough to evacuate people from four-story 
buildings, like new Primary Care Center. 

 Videocameras
Security cameras. 

Police Department 

 Videocameras
Entire videocamera system needs to be replaced. 

Public Works 

 New Garage for Sewer Trucks
Separating the sewer trucks by putting them in their own garage is a health and 
safety issue. Also gives more room for the larger 4,000-gallon, longer trucks we 
are ordering new. 

 LEDs
City Shop should all be LEDs for added brightness and energy savings. 

 Energy Improvements
As listed in Energy Audit. 

 Track Loader (e.g., CAT 953)
For use at the landfill on a daily basis. 

 Water Trucks

 Sewer Trucks

 Siding for City Shop
New siding to protect the walls. South side has most damage from sun.

Planning 

 GIS/Mapping
Hardware, software, photos of Bethel actuals, package would have to put together.

Port 

 Videocameras
Security cameras to protect small boat harbor, Petro Port, City Dock, port office, 
float plane beach area. 

Administration 

 City Hall Energy Improvements
Energy Audit contains numerous improvement expenditures. 

 Courthouse
Energy Audit contains numerous improvement expenditures. 

P135 A



 

Mayor’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

135



1 of 1  

 

      City of Bethel, Alaska 
City Clerk’s Office 

 
Council Meetings and Events 
October 25, 2016 Regular Meeting 
October 26, 2016 Special Meeting  
November 8, 2016 Special Meeting  
 
City Manager Recruitment Process 
The City Clerk’s Office worked with two of the final candidates on 
arrangements/schedule during their onsite visit ie, airfare, lodging, per diem, travel 
expense report ect. Also prepared the schedule for the candidates during their time in 
town.  
 
City of Bethel Regular Election 
The Council’s certification of the election took place on the 11th; following the 
certification the City Clerk’s Office prepared the documents for long and short term 
storage as well as provided the State of Alaska Division of Elections with the copies of 
the absentee in person and question ballot slips to account for the voters voting in the 
election and to update the voter registration information.  
 
Annually the City Clerk’s Office does a review of the City’s regular election processes and 
continues to make modifications to the internal procedures for the office.  
 
State of Alaska General Election  
The City Clerk’s Office will begin the absentee in person voting October 24. In addition 
to the absentee in person voting, the office will work on the recruitment process for 
election officials and is glad to include in this recruitment the hope to involve students 
from the school. The City Clerk’s Office reached out to the High School principal with the 
hope to recruit some students to participate as election officials; additionally, KLA will be 
assisting as election officials this year.   
 
City Clerk’s Assistant 
The Office is excited to welcome Dyane Chung as the new Assistant.  
 
Records Retention Schedule 
Since August, the City Clerk has been encouraging the Department Heads to take a 
close look at the records retention schedules for their department to allow for an overall 
rewrite of the records retention schedule in January.  



 

City Manager’s Report 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

136



 
CITY OF BETHEL 

P.O. Box 388 
Bethel, Alaska  99559 
Ph. (907) 543-4150 
Fax (907) 543-3817 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

DATE: 

 

10-18-2016 

TO: 

 

City Council 

 

FROM: 

 

Peter Williams, Acting City Manager 

RE: Managers’ Report 

  

  

 Directed the Finance Department to forward documentation of all delinquent accounts to 

the City Attorney. 

 

 USDA/Lagoon – discussed the last of the few documents needed on Oct 12. The RFP for 

design services is being scored at the time of this report. 

 

 Institutional Corridor- have had discussions with the Project Managers and DOWL’s real 

estate personnel about the easements needed for this project. 

 

  Approved the expenditure of funds from the Parks and Recs budget of $10,000 to to 

match grant from APEI of the same amount. The funds will be used to purchase surface 

materials for the parks, 150 bags @ 2,000 lbs. ea. This is the last year this grant will be 

available because no one has used it. 

 

 Approved applying for the EE-Kickstarter award for $10,000, no match required. 

Applications must be received by Nov.4th. Suggested use was for LED lights at the 

Public Works Building. 

 

 Assisted pool operators with some concerns over the budget, admission fees, sales tax 

and what Depts. to go to if they need help in the future. 

 

 Public Works -12 employee valuations were turned into the H.R. Dept. 

 

 The design for the Port Office is on schedule and should be 50% completed in early 

November. 

 

 

137



 

City Clerk’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

138



 

 
 

Executive Session   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

139



 

Additional Information  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

140


	Approval of the Meeting Minutes
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Special Order of Business
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Mayor’s Report
	City Manager’s Report
	Management Team Reports
	City Clerk’s Report
	Executive Session

	Date action introduced: 10-11-2016
	Introduced by: City Manager Williams
	Date action taken: 
	Confirmed by the City Clerk: 
	DepartmentIndividualRow1: 
	RemarksRow1: 
	DepartmentIndividualRow2: 
	RemarksRow2: 
	DepartmentIndividualRow3: 
	RemarksRow3: 
	DepartmentIndividualRow4: 
	RemarksRow4: 
	DepartmentIndividualRow5: 
	RemarksRow5: 
	Amount of fiscal impactRow1: X
	Account informationNo fiscal impact: 
	Amount of fiscal impactRow2: 
	Account informationFunds are budgeted for: 
	Amount of fiscal impactRow3: 
	Account informationFunds are not budgeted Budget modification is required: 
	List any attachments: May 2013 Revision of Vehicle Policy
	Action Title: Directing administration to prepare an updated vehicle policy for consideration by City Council.
	Action Summary: Background: The City's vehicle policy was last revised in May of 2013. The list of employees authorized to take home vehicles has not been approved by a City Manager since prior to 2015. It is an appropriate time to revisit the policy. A policy review will focus on improved guidance for:- Occasional use of vehicle "pool" during normal work hours;- Take-home privileges to increase response time;- Unconditional use;- Personal Use;- Passengers (Employees and others);- Compensable time and vehicle use;- Taxation of take-home vehicle as a fringe benefit. The review will also include the current provision that an employee's driving record/license status be reviewed annually with recertification of the individuals' vehicle privileges. The City does not currently have a mechanism to accomplish this review without the employee paying for a DMV-provided driving record. 
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box18: Off
	Check Box19: Off
	Serial Number Provided by the Clerk: 16-


